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Board of Directors

MR. PRADEEP JUNG PANDEY
CHAIRMAN

MR. SUMIT KUMAR AGRAWAL MR. MANOJ KARKI
Director Director

MR. MAHESH SWAR MR. SHREEMAN KARKI
Independent Director

Director



yuewdopeas(] 3 Burumniy, ABorouyoag, UOIRULIOU] uoredIuNWuo)) R puelg eouerdwo) i [ehe
ADYIDG 189Ny TN feyled nysms IA ejoxdeg euoaeg ‘SN relnyg mpeyeqg mprg I
UOHDAISSUOD) 23 SODIAISG ISWO}STN]) SODIAIOG [DISUSK) X SWID[D)
jeuseqd ysebeid IN ouednaN ysoyen ‘I

4H 1seq - 0dD 1S8M - 04D Bunumiepun
8sT[eYD poulg Ieyueys I\ a[be)) Tewny] Tewrg I Arejardeg Auedwo) wno NHA expe] mpeteg loyg 1A uelreye\ nuysig I
'0°g mpeveq diq I .
(oicrelel
onus) - 049D . S sereg 1011 Pue 4N
[ereys{od [rung I PAPERL TN MEEEA AN ogp [T Heashad A seyred ey ‘SN

Tepned fey sreusod TN



MR. RAM BAHADUR KHATRY MR. BIMAL KUMAR WAGLE MR. SHIVA KUMAR KARKI
Koshi Pradesh Madhesh Pradesh Bagmati Pradesh

MR. CHHABI LAL POUDEL MR. SUNIL POKHAREL MR. MURALI BHANDARI
Gandaki Pradesh Lumbini Pradesh Karnali Pradesh

MR. DHOJ BAHADUR KHADKA
Sudurpaschim Pradesh

Province Head ..
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Shareholders of
Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd.

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

]OSH’ & BHANDARY = Chartered Accountants -

G.P.O. Box: 3423

Kosi Compound, Dillibazar
Kathmandu, Nepal

Tel: 977-1-4419364

Tel: 977-1-4423550

Fax: 977-1-4413038

Web: www.jb.com.np

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Citizen Life Insurance Company Ltd (CLIC) which
comprises of statement of financial position as on Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023), the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended Ashad
31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) and notes to the financial statement, including a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements with the notes attached present fairly, in all material
respect, the financial position of the Company as at Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023) and its financial
performance, the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended in accordance with the Nepal Financial Reporting

Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAN's Handbook of the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the
audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period and include most significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether of not due to fraud) identified including those which has greatest effect on overall audit
strategy, allocation of resources in the audit and directing effort of the engagement team. We summaries below
key audit matters, in decreasing order of audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for public interest entities, our results from
those procedures. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Our Response to the Key Audit Matter

1. Information Technology General Controls

Our audit procedures have a focus on IT systems and
controls due to the pervasive nature and complexity of
the IT environment, the large volume of transactions
processed in numerous locations daily and the
reliance on automated and IT dependent manual
controls. Qur areas of audit focus included data
management, user access management, correctness
of input, control lapses, validation failures and
changes to the IT environment. Among others, these
are key to ensuring operating effectiveness of IT
dependent application-based controls. If the IT control

We tested the operating effectiveness of the
company's IT access controls over the information
systems that are critical to financial reporting. We !
inspected requests of changes to systems for |
appropriate approval and authorization. We checked |
whether the IT policies and guidelines were properly |
followed by the company and have also relied on the
past report issued by the IS Auditor of the company. |
We verified the major insurance transaction like
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over financial data is improper risk of wrong reporting
to the management, regulator as well as other
stakeholders. Hence this is considered as Key Audit
Matters.

premium income recognition, claim procedures efc. to
determine effective IT controls over financial data on
manual basis. In addition, we understood where
relevant, changes were made to the IT controls during

the audit period that had a significant impact on |

financial reporting.

|
2. Investment Valuation, Identification, and Impairment

Investment of the company comprises investment in
guoted and unguoted equity instruments, bonds,
debentures and fixed deposits which is 82% of total
assets. The valuation of the securities has been done
in accordance with NFRS 9 and regulatory
requirements. The valuation of unlisted or not
frequently traded investment involves management
judgement. These investments do not represent
higher risk of material misstatement however, are
considered to be key audit matter due to materiality to
the financial statement.

We have carried out the following audit procedures:

»  Understood the Company’s process and tested |

the controls on the valuation of investments;

» Tested the design, Iimplementation and
operating effectiveness of key controls over the
valuation process,
assessment and approval of assumptions used
for valuation, including key authorization and
data input controls thereof;

> Assessed valuation methodologies  with
reference to the Accounting Policy and
regulatory requirements.

Y

performed independent price checks using
external quoted prices and by agreeing the

inputs which were used in the Company's |

valuation techniques to external data;

»  For investment valued at amortized cost, we
checked the EIR and amortization schedule on
test basis.

| 3. Revenue Recognition

Premium income is the major source of revenue of th?[ Our audit procedure on revenue recogrﬁfi'on includes: |

company. We have focused on these areas as the
significant concentration of the revenue under this
head. Gross insurance premiums income comprises
first premium income and renewal premium that can
be reliably measured.

Revenue is key performance indicator of the business
and recorded in complex IT System and environment.
Further, recognition of revenue is an area of higher
risk as it includes a large number of customers spread
in various geographical locations, ages, and health
conditions. Accordingly, it is considered as a key
matter as the amount involved is material to the

financial statements.

» Understanding and

effectiveness.

evaluating  operating

»  Test of control to ensure that revenue has been |

accounted as per regulatory provision.
» Testing on sample basis policies
confirms the terms of revenue recognition are

duly fulfilled.

» Carrying out analytical procedure and
recalculated premium income on sample
policies,

» Ensuring on sample basis that the premium is
being collected through bank.

»  Assessing the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosure against relevant
accounting standards, Insurance Act and other
applicable rules and regulation issued by
regulator.

4. Valuation of Insurance Contract Liabilities

The Company has significant insurance contract

| liabilities representing the majority of its total liabilities.

Application of different assumptions may result in

Our audit procedures related to actuarial models and

assumptions of mortality and policyholder behaviour
included the following:

including the Company's |

For selected samples of listed investments, |

issued |
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different measurement of the insurance contract | » Reviewing and testing the completeness and
liabilities. There is insurance risk from the uncertainty accuracy of financial data submitted to actuary

of product performance due to differences between | » Assessing the independence, expertise and
the actual experience and expected experience. The qualifications of the appointed Actuary and the
Company uses various actuarial models to determine approvals relating to the appointment.

insurance contract liabilities, some of which involve | » We tested the reasonableness of key mortality and
high levels of complexity. policyholder behaviour assumptions.

While there are many assumptions which | » We tested the appropriateness of actuarial
management makes, the assumptions with the valuation used in the estimation process.

greatest uncertainty are those related to mortality, | > We have relied on the report issued by the
lapse and other policyholder behaviour. These appointed actuary of the company.

assumptions required subjective and auditor judgment

in certain circumstances.

J1at afffes ufdidcel 20To

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The company’s management is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

The annual report is expected to be made available for our review after the date of this auditor's report. Our
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is
material misstatement, therein, we are requiring to request management and those charged with government to
correct the material misstatement.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with NFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the
financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSA's will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. Further
responsibilities of the auditor have been mentioned in Appendix-1.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirement

As per prevailing company Act 2063 and corporate governance Directives issued by Nepal Insurance Authority,
we further report that,
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We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

Proper books of account as required by prevailing law have been kept by the Company.

To the best of our information and explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts of the company, we have not come across the cases where the Board of Directors or any
member thereof or any employee of the company has acted contrary to the provisions of the law
relating to accounts or caused loss or damage to the Company deliberately.

To the best of our information and explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts of the company, we did not come across any fraudulent cases causing fundamental effect
relating to accounts of the Company.

Report u/s 78 and return of annual general meeting u/s 80 for FY 2078/079 has not been duly filed
within stipulated time and penalties was attracted and paid by company under Company Act 2063.
Company's life assurance fund and other special reserves are as per prescribed provisions.

As per information obtained, company has not conducted any kind of other business except approved
life insurance business.

To the best of our information and explanations given to us and from our examination of the books of
accounts of the company, we did not come across any instances of any act contrary to the interest of
insured.

To the best of our information, Company is able to meet its long-term liabilities from its assets.

Executive Partner

Date: January 01, 2024 (Poush 16, 2080)
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
UDIN: 240101CAD0106VBssn

_?o_
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Appendix-1

As a part of audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercised professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit of CLIC for FY 2079-80. We also:

Identified and assessed the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to
fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide an opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the
effectiveness of internal control.

Concluded an appropriateness of the management use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based in audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
concluded that a material uncertainty exists, we were required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures were inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions were based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Evaluated the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
rmanner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities to express an opinion on the financial statements. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicated with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be though to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
standards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

As At Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Statement of Financial Position

Fig in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Assets: |
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 4 2,505,085 2,283,070
Property and Equipment 5 235,740,566 78,182,436
Investment Properties 6 - -
Deferred Tax Assets 7 635,650,542 651,932,183
Investment in Subsidiaries 8 - -
Investment in Associates 9 - -
Investments 10 12,127,149,590 8,456,650,290
Loans 11 634,571,621 | 390,512,770
Reinsurance Assets 12 93,107 2,525,353
Current Tax Assets 21 327,511,843 243,253,224
Insurance Receivables 13 46,676,376 -
Other Assets 14 35,686,102 | 20,151,352
Other Financial Assets 15 217,741,263 135,869,148
Cash and Cash Equivalent 16 464,897,050 302,169,675
Total Assets 14,728,223,146 10,283,529,500
Equity & Liabilities:
Equity:
Share Capital 17 (a) 2,625,000,000 | 1,750,000,000
Share Application Money Pending Allotment 17 (b) - -
Share Premium 17 (c) 13,037,437 | -
Catastrophe Reserves 17 (d) 137,250,191 125,750,988
Retained Earnings 17 (e) 579,539,081 477,196,178
Other Equity 17 (f) 657,177,783 664,658,575
Total Equity 4,012,004,492 3,017,605,741
Liabilities:
Provisions 18 22,689,111 | 17,657,495
Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities 19 10,204,161,327 6,764,570,980
Deferred Tax Liabilities 7 - -
Insurance Payable 20 9,198,540 96,079,623
Current Tax Liabilities 21 - -
Borrowings 22 - -
Other Liabilities 23 230,356,119 | 120,701,979
Other Financial Liabilities 24 249,813,558 266,913,683
Total Liabilities 10,716,218,654 7,265,923,759
Total Equity and Liabilities 14,728,223,146 10,283,529,500

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Dip Bahadur B.C.
Chief Financial Officer

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director

Jral affes Ufdidcel 20TO

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Manoj Karki
Director

Abhinav JB Rana
Director

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Mahesh Swar
Director

Shreeman Karki
Independent Director

As per our attached report of
even date

Manmohan Raj Kafle, FCA
Executive Partner
Joshi And Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu
Date: 2080/09/16
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss

For Period from Shrawan 01, 2079 to Ashad 31, 2080 (July 17, 2022 to July 16, 2023)

Fig. in NPR
Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Income:
Gross Earned Premiums 25 5,893,266,051 5,314,825,704
Premiums Ceded 26 (411,186,336) (300,716,940)
Net Earned Premiums 5,482,079,715 5,014,108,764
Commission Income 27 51,876,177 18,141,814
Other Direct Income 28 15,697,135 10,903,757
Interest Income on Loan to Policyholders 1" 52,439,811 28,253,771
Income from Investments and Loans 29 1,065,361,926 705,592,953
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes 30 - -
Net Realised Gains/(Losses) 31 - -
Other Income 32 1,293,394 4,140,404
Total Income 6,668,748,158 5,781,141,463
Expenses:
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid 33 1,902,818,961 1,286,117,213
Claims Ceded 33 (267,727,102) (117,118,128)
Gross Change in Contract Liabilities 34 3,439,590,347 2,795,204,105
Change in Contract Liabities Ceded to Reinsurers 34 2,432,246 (12,814,710)
Net Benefits and Claims Paid 5,077,114,452 3,951,388,480
Commission Expenses 35 718,889,220 826,801,103
Service Fees 36 44,918,778 50,141,088
Other Direct expenses 37 - -
Employee Benefits Expenses 38 267,699,619 235,702,812
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 39 54,430,347 20,025,595
Impairment Losses 40 499,449 1,311,027
Other Operating Expenses 41 380,497,838 547,856,813
Finance Cost 42 9,706,429 34,140
Total Expenses 6,553,756,132 5,633,261,058
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year Before Share of Net Profits of Associates
Accounted for Using Equity Method and Tax 114,992,026 147,880,405
Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method 9 - -
Profit Before Tax 114,992,026 147,880,405
Income Tax Expense 43 12,395,853 (228,191,504)
Net Profit/(Loss) For The Year 102,596,173 376,071,909
Earning Per Share: 51
Basic EPS 4.33 21.49
Diluted EPS 4.33 21.49

Chief Financial Officer

Sumit Kumar Agrawal

Dip Bahadur B.C. Poshak Raj Paudel

Chief Executive Officer

Manoj Karki

Director Director

Abhinav JB Rana
Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Mahesh Swar
Director

Shreeman Karki
Independent Director

As per our attached report of

even date

Manmohan Raj Kafle, FCA
Executive Partner
Joshi And Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu

Date: 2080/09/16
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For Period from Shrawan 01, 2079 to Ashad 31, 2080 (July 17, 2022 to July 16, 2023)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Notes

Current Year

Previous Year

Net Profit/(Loss) For the Year

102,596,173

376,071,909

Other Comprehensive Income

a) Items that are or may be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in Fair Value of FVOCI Debt Instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - Effective Portion of Changes in Fair Value

Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Operation

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method 9

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems

Reclassified to Profit or Loss

b) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss

Changes in fair value of FVOCI Equity Instruments

15,543,152

(23,302,443)

Revaluation of Property and Equipment/ Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
using the equity method 9

Income Tax Relating to Above ltems

(3,885,788)

5,825,611

Total Other Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax

11,657,364

(17,476,832)

Total Comprehensive Income For the Year, Net of Tax

114,253,537

358,595,077

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Dip Bahadur B.C. Poshak Raj Paudel Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairman
Sumit Kumar Agrawal Manoj Karki Mahesh Swar

Director Director Director
Dawa Futi Sherpa Abhinav JB Rana Shreeman Karki
Director Director Independent Director
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As per our attached report of
even date

Manmohan Raj Kafle, FCA
Executive Partner
Joshi And Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu

Date: 2080/09/16
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
As At Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash Flow From Operating Activities:
Cash Received

Proceeds from Sale of Mutual Funds

Gross Premium Received 5,893,266,051 5,314,825,704
Commission Received 51,876,177 29,045,571
Claim Recovery Received from Reinsurers 267,727,102 117,118,128
Realised Foreign Exchange Income other than on Cash and Cash Equivalents - -
Other Direct Income 15,697,135 -
Others (to be specified) (218,387,312) -
Cash Paid
Gross Benefits and Claims Paid (1,902,818,961) (1,286,117,213)
Reinsurance Premium Paid (411,186,336) (286,761,012)
Commission Paid (718,889,220) (773,957,210)
Service Fees Paid (44,918,778) (35,346,364)
Employee Benefits Expenses Paid (267,699,619) (227,862,187)
Other Expenses Paid (389,899,759) (547,315,026)
Others (to be specified) - -
Income Tax Paid - -
Net Cash Flow From Operating Activities [1] 2,274,766,479 2,303,630,391
Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Acquisitions of Intangible Assets (700,450) (11,300)
Proceeds From Sale of Intangible Assets - -
Acquisitions of Investment Properties - -
Proceeds From Sale of Investment Properties - -
Rental Income Received - -
Acquisitions of Property and Equipment (214,442,229) (38,355,532)
Proceeds From Sale of Property and Equipment 660,750 1,135,154
Investment in Subsidiaries - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Associates - -
Receipts from Sale of Investments in Associates - -
Purchase of Equity Instruments (76,294,149) -
Proceeds from Sale of Equity Instruments 750,000.00 76,489,137
Purchase of Mutual Funds (95,000,000) -

Purchase of Preference Shares

Proceeds from Sale of Preference Shares

Purchase of Debentures
Proceeds from Sale of Debentures

(721,412,000)

(1,245,481,000)

Purchase of Bonds
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds

Investments in Deposits (4,773,826,633) (4,225,000,000)
Maturity of Deposits 2,005,826,633 2,283,000,000
Loans Paid (244,558,300) 117,757,317
Proceeds from Loans - (202,792,507)

—?6—
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Cash Flows

As At Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Rental Income Received

Proceeds from Finance Lease

Interest Income Received

1,117,801,737

673,997,171

Dividend Received

3,079,070

Other Income Received

1,118,100

22,635

Total Cash Flow From Investing Activities [2]

(3,000,076,541)

(2,556,159,855)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities:

Interest Paid

Proceeds From Borrowings

Repayment of Borrowings

Payment of Finance Lease

Proceeds From Issue of Share Capital

888,037,437

Share Issuance Cost Paid

Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid

Others (to be specified)

Total Cash Flow From Financing Activities [3]

888,037,437

Net Increase/(Decrease) In Cash & Cash Equivalents [1+2+3]

162,727,375

(252,529,464)

Cash & Cash Equivalents At Beginning of The Year/Period

302,169,675

554,699,139

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash & Cash Equivalents At End of The Year/Period

464,897,050

302,169,675

Components of Cash & Cash Equivalents:

Cash In Hand

12,217,196

401,085

Cheuge in Hand

Term Deposit with Banks (with initial maturity upto 3 months)

Balance With Banks

452,679,854

301,768,590

The accompanying notes form an Integral Part of Financial Statements.

Dip Bahadur B.C.
Chief Financial Officer

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Sumit Kumar Agrawal Manoj Karki Mahesh Swar
Director Director Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa Abhinav JB Rana
Director Director

Shreeman Karki
Independent Director
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As per our attached report of

even date

Manmohan Raj Kafle, FCA
Executive Partner
Joshi And Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu
Date: 2080/09/16
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss
As At Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

Opening Balance in Retained Earnings

477,196,178 394,212,541

Transfer from OCI reserves to retained earning in current year

Net profit or (loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss

102,596,173 376,071,909

Appropriations:

i)Transfer to Insurance Fund

i) Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve

(11,499,203) (35,609,567)

iii)Transfer to Capital Reserve

iv)Transfer to CSR Reserve

(1,149,920) (3,560,957)

v)Transfer to/from Regulatory Reserve

- (19,976,244)

vi)Transfer to Fair Value Reserve

vii)Transfer of Deferred Tax Reserve

12,395,853 (228,191,504)

viii)Transfer to OClI reserves due to change in classification

ix)Transfer of Provision of Investment Loss from Other Reserve

5,750,000 -

Deductions:

i) Accumulated Fair Value Gain on each Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

a) Equity Instruments

b) Mutual Fund

c) Others (if any)

i) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Investment Properties

iii) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges

iv) Accumulated Fair Value gain on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges

v) Accumulated Fair value gain of Ineffective Portion on Cash Flow Hedges

vi)) Goodwill Recognised

vii) Unrealised Gain on fluctuation of Foreign Exchange Currency

viii) Accumulated Share of Net Profit of Associates accounted using Equity Method included
in Investment Account

ix) Overdue Loans

x) Fair value gain recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss
xi) Investment in unlisted shares as per sec 16 of Financial Directive
xii) Delisted share investment or mutual fund investment
xXiii) Bonus Share/Dividend Paid

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 17 of Financial Directive

xiv) Deduction as per Sec 18 of Financial Directive

xv) Others (to be specified)

Adjusted Retained Earning

Add: Transfer from Share Premium Account

Less: Amount apportioned for Assigned Capital

Less: Deduction as per Sec 15(1) of Financial Directive
Add/Less: Others (to be specified)

(5,750,000) (5,750,000)
(37,320) -

579,501,761 477,196,178

(6,402,767) (18,060,131)

Total Distributable Profit/(Loss)

573,098,994 459,136,047

Dip Bahadur B.C.
Chief Financial Officer

Sumit Kumar Agrawal
Director

Dawa Futi Sherpa
Director

Poshak Raj Paudel
Chief Executive Officer

Manoj Karki
Director

Abhinav JB Rana
Director

Pradeep Jung Pandey
Chairman

Mahesh Swar
Director

Shreeman Karki
Independent Director

As per our attached report
of even date

Manmohan Raj Kafle, FCA
Executive Partner
Joshi And Bhandary
Chartered Accountants

Kathmandu
Date: 2080/09/16
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023)

1. General Information:

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the 'Company') is a Public
Limited Company, incorporated on Ashad 12, 2064 (June 26, 2007) and operated as Life Insurance
Company after obtaining license on Bhadra 07, 2074 (August 23, 2017) under the Insurance Act
2079.

The registered office of the Company is located at Thapathali, Kathmandu. The Company's shares
are listed on NEPSE as ‘CLI'.

The principal activities of the Company are to provide various life insurance products including
participating and non-participating products through its province offices, branches, sub-branches,
and network of agents.

2. Basis of Preparation:

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

a. Statement of Compliance:

The Financial Statements of the Company comprises of Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income shown as two
separate statements, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to
the Financial Statements which have been prepared in accordance with the Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS) issued by the Nepal Accounting Standards Board (ASB) and in
compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006, directives issued by Nepal
Insurance Authority and required disclosures as per Securities Board of Nepal. The format used
in the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements and disclosures made therein
also complies with the specified formats prescribed in the directives of Nepal Insurance Authority.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The term NFRS,
includes all the standards and the related interpretations which are consistently used.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on Poush
16, 2080 (January 01, 2024).

b. Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements:
The Company reporting period is from Shrawan 1, 2079 (July 17, 2022) to Ashad 31, 2080 (July
16, 2023) with the corresponding previous year from Shrawan 1, 2078 (July 16, 2021) to Ashad
32, 2079 (July 16, 2022). These financial statements have been approved by the Board of
Directors on Poush 16, 2080 (January 01, 2024).

c. Basis of Measurement:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for following
Assets & Liabilities which have been measured at Fair Value amount:

i. Investments on Equity Shares and Mutual Funds,

ii. Defined Employee Benefits, and
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iii. Insurance Contract Liabilities which are required to be determined using actuarial
valuation for Liability Adequacy Test (LAT).

Historical Cost is generally Fair Value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for Financial Reporting purposes, Fair Value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, or 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the Fair Value measurements are
observable & the significance of the inputs to the Fair Value measurements in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical Assets or
Liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 — Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the Asset or Liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 — Inputs are unobservable inputs for the Asset or Liability.

. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of these Financial Statements in conformity with NFRS requires management to
make estimates, judgments, and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions
affect the reported balance of Assets & Liabilities, disclosures relating to Contingent Liabilities as
at the date of the Financial Statements and the reported amounts of Income & Expenses for the
year presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Functional and Presentation Currency:

These Financial Statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's
functional currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest
rupee except if indicated otherwise.

Going Concern:

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. The Board of Directors have
considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions, including future
projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources while assessing the going concern
basis. Furthermore, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon Company's ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to
liquidate or to cease operation of it.

. Change in Accounting Policies:

Accounting Policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied
by the Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to
change an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or
results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the
effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, financial
performance, or cash flow.
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h. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

Accounting Standards Issued and Effective: Issued June 25, 2020 and Effective from July 16,
2020.

i. Carve-Outs:
The Company has not applied any carve outs provided by the Accounting Standard Board (ASB).
j. Presentation of Financial Statements:

The assets and liabilities of the Company presented in the Statement of Financial Position are
grouped by nature and listed in an order that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity pattern.
The figures of corresponding previous year has been reclassified/restated to show the
comparative figures as per the Financial Statement Directive, 2080.

k. Off-Setting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the Statement
of Financial Position, only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expenses are not offset in the Statement of Profit or Loss
unless required or permitted by Nepalese Financial Reporting Standards or Interpretation (issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard
Interpretations Committee (SIC) and as specifically disclosed in the Significant Accounting
Policies of the Company.

I. Materiality and Aggregation:

Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the Financial Statements. ltems
of dissimilar nature or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted
by the Nepal Accounting Standard-NAS 1 on 'Presentation of Financial Statements'.

Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in a systematic manner which ensures the
understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the Company. Understandability
of the Financial Statements is not compromised by obscuring material information with immaterial
information or by aggregating material items that have different natures or functions.

3. Significant Accounting Policies:
a. Goodwill and Intangible Assets:

i. Recognition: Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is
reflected in Statement of profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future
economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

Goodwill on business combination is recognized on the acquisition date at the excess of (a)
over (b) below:

a) The aggregate of:

i. The consideration transferred measured in accordance with the NFRS 3, which
generally requires acquisition-date fair value.
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ii. The amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree measured in accordance
with the NFRS 3, and

ii. In a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree.

b) The net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

. Amortization: The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

An intangible asset shall be regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on an
analysis of all of the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
asset is expected to generate net cash inflow for the entity.

Amortization is recognized in statement of profit of loss on Straight Line Method (SLM) over
the estimated useful life of the intangible assets/ Diminishing Balance Method (DBM), from
the date that is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify
the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates, The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Software 10 Years

Licenses License Period

Others (to be specified) Not Applicable

Derecognition: An Intangible Asset is derecognized when no Future Economic Benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the Asset. Any Gain or Loss arising on the
derecognition is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment of Assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is
any indication that Intangible Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. An
impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss to the extent, asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair
value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the assets.

b. Property and Equipment (P&E):

— 3% —

Recognition: Freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation
when, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and it can be used for more than one year and the cost can be measured reliably.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it meets the recognition criteria as mentioned above. The
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.
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iv.
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Revaluation: After recognition as an assets, lands and buildings whose fair value can be
measured reliably, have been carried at revalued amount at the date of revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Valuations are being performed to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not
materially differ from it ‘s carrying amount as at the reporting date. Valuation of the land and
buildings are undertaken by professionally qualified valuers.

An increase in the carrying amount, as a result of revaluation, is recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve.
However, the increase is recognized in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognized in profit and loss. A decrease in the
carrying amount, as a result of revaluation, is recognized in profit or loss. However, the
decrease is recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance
existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being sold is
transferred directly to retained earnings.

The difference between depreciation on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and
depreciation based on the asset's original cost is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation: Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment other than the Freehold Land
i.e. the Company's Freehold Building, Plant & Machinery, Vehicles & Other Assets is provided
on "Straight Line Method (SLM)/ Diminishing Balance Method (DBM)" based on Useful Life
estimated by technical expert of the management.

The Assets Useful Life/ Rate of Depreciation and Residual Values are reviewed at the
Reporting date and the effect of any changes in estimates are accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Useful Life of Property, Plant and Equipment based on SLM is categorized as stated below:

Assets Categories Useful Life (In Years) for SLM
Land Not Applicable

Buildings** Lease Term

Leasehold Improvement 5 Years

Furniture & Fixture 10 Years

Computers and IT Equipment 8 Years

Office Equipment 8 Years

Vehicles 5 Years

Other Assets Not Applicable

** The amount shown in building represents Right to use assets as per NFRS 16 — Leases.

Derecognition: An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognized up to disposal or
when no Future Economic Benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the Asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Impairment of Assets: Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognized for the amount by which the Asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and
value in use. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
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present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risk specific to the assets. Assets that suffer an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. In case of such
reversal, the carrying amount of the asset is increased so as not to exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had there been no impairment loss.

vi. Capital Work-In-Progress: These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the
construction of buildings, major plant and machinery and system development which are to
be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the relevant asset when it is
available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Investment Properties:
Cost Model:

Property that is held for rental income or for capital appreciation or both, is classified as
investment property. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including related
transaction cost. It is subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Subsequent
expenditure is capitalized to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the company and the cost can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.

Land is carried at historical cost; however, buildings are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives as mentioned above.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.

OR

Fair Value Model:

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market condition
at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise, including
the corresponding tax effect.

The fair value of investment property is determined by an external, independent property valuer,
having appropriate recognized professional qualification and recent experience in the location
and category by property being valued.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under PPE up to the date of change in use.
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d. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities:

Deferred Tax Assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible Temporary difference and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred Tax Liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable Temporary Difference.

The carrying amount of Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the Deferred Tax Asset to be utilized. The deferred tax assets recognised for unused
tax loss of FY 2075.076 has been derecognised by the company.

e. Financial Assets:

Jral affes Ufdidcel 20TO

Initial Recognition & Measurement: Financial Assets are recognized when, and only when,
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The
Company determines the classification of its Financial Assets at initial recognition.

When Financial Assets are recognized initially, they are measured at Fair Value, plus, in the
case of Financial Assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the Financial Asset. Transaction costs of Financial Assets
carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss are expensed in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

. Subsequent Measurement:

Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost (AC): A Financial Asset is measured at amortized
cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the Financial Asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, Interest income in these financial assets is measured using
effective interest rate method.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI): A Financial
Asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling Financial Assets and the contractual
terms of the Financial Asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. These financial assets are
measured at fair value and changes are taken to statement of other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL): A Financial Asset which is not
classified in any of the above categories is measured at FVTPL.

De-Recognition: A Financial Assets is derecognized only when the Company has transferred
the rights to receive cash flows from Financial Assets. Where the Company has transferred
an Asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the Financial Asset. In such cases, the Financial Asset is derecognized.
Where the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the Financial Asset, the Financial Asset is not derecognized. Where the Company retains
control of the Financial Asset, the Asset is continued to be recognized to the extent of
continuing involvement in the Financial Asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets: The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
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principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization and observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

f. Reinsurance Assets:

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the
amount which are recoverable from the reinsurer. These assets are created for the reinsurer's
share of insurance contract liabilities.

Areinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective evidence, as a result of an event that occurred
after the initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the Company may not receive all
amounts due to it under the terms of the contract, and the event has a reliably measurable impact
on the amount that the company will receive from the re-insurer. If a reinsurance asset is
impaired, the company reduce the carrying amount accordingly and is recognized in statement
of profit or loss.

. Current Tax Assets:

Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses
relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable on Taxable Income
after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the
applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

. Cash & Cash Equivalent:

Cash & Cash Equivalents include Cash in Hand, Cheque in Hand, Bank Balances, and Short-
Term Deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

Financial Liabilities:
i. Initial Recognition & Measurement: Financial Liabilities are recognized when, and only when,

the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the Financial Instrument. The
Company determines the classification of its Financial Liabilities at initial recognition.

All Financial Liabilities are recognized initially at Fair Value, plus, in the case of Financial
Liabilities not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
issue of the Financial Liability.

ii. Subsequent Measurement: After initial recognition, Financial Liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Method.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the date of Statement of Financial
Position, the carrying amounts approximate Fair Value due to short maturity of these
instruments.

iii. De-Recognition: A Financial Liability is de-recognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing Financial Liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Off-Setting Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Statement of
Financial Position where there is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
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be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

k. Equity:

Financial Instruments issued by the Company are classified as Equity only to the extent that they
do not meet the definition of a Financial Liability or Financial Asset.

. Reserves and Funds:
i. Share Application Money Pending Allotment: If the company has issued share and part of

such shares are not fully paid up then such pending amount are called share application
money pending allotment.

ii. Share Premium: If the company issues share capital at premium, it receives extra amount
other than share capital such amount is transferred to share premium. The amount in share
premium is allowed for distribution net of tax subject to provisions of Company act & regulatory
requirement.

iii. Catastrophe Reserve: The Company has allocated catastrophe reserve for the amount which
is 10% of the profit before tax for the year as per Regulator's Directive.

iv. Fair Value Reserve: The Company has a policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the
amount of Fair Value Gain recognized in statement of other comprehensive income as per
regulator’s directive.

v. Actuarial Reserves: Reserve against actuarial gain or loss on present value of defined benefit
obligation resulting from, experience adjustments (the effects of differences between the
previous actuarial assumptions and what has occurred); and the effects of changes in
actuarial assumptions.

vi. Corporate Social Responsibility Reserves: The Company has allocated a corporate social
responsibility reserve for the amount which is 1% of the profit for the year as per Regulator's
Directive.

vii. Revaluation Reserves: Reserve created against revaluation gain on property, plant &
equipment & intangible assets, other than the reversal or earlier revaluation losses charged
to profit or loss.

viii. Other Reserve: Reserves other than the above reserves.
m. Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities:
Liability adequacy

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets
relating to the relevant life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the
carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability. In addition, the company has
appointed a professional actuary to assess the sufficiency of its liabilities in accordance with the
Nepal Insurance Authority's Actuarial Valuation Directives for Life Insurances 2077.

n. Employee Benefits:

i. Short Term Obligations: Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits
that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which
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the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employees' services
up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligation in the Statement of Financial Position.

Post-Employment Benefits:

Defined Contribution Plan: The Company pays Provident Fund contributions to publicly
administered Provident Funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as
defined contribution plans and the contributions are recognized as Employee Benefit
Expenses when they are due.

Defined Benefit Plan: For the Defined Benefit Plan, the cost of providing benefits is determined
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried out at each
Statement of Financial Position. Actuarial Gains & Losses are recognized in the Other
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they occur. Past service cost is recognized
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and otherwise is amortized on
a Straight-Line Basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The retirement
benefit obligation recognized in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, as
reduced by the Fair Value of plan Assets (If Any). Any Asset resulting from this calculation is
limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Long Term Employee Benefits: The liabilities for un-availed earned leaves are not expected
to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service. Leave Encashment has been computed using Actuarial Assumptions and
these are measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of the year using the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the year that have
terms approximating to the terms of assumptions.

. Termination: Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the

Company before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
retirement in exchange of these benefits. The Company recognizes termination benefits at
the earlier of the following dates:

When the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and

. When the entity recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of NAS 37 and

involves the payment of termination benefits. The termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer in the case of voluntary retirement
scheme.

0. Revenue Recognition:

_XO_

Gross Premium: Gross Premiums are recognized as soon as the amount of the premiums
can be reliably measured. Such premiums are recognized on cash basis.

Unearned Premium Reserves: Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written
in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums are
calculated on a pro rate basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred
as a provision for unearned premiums.

Premiums on Reinsurance Accepted: Premiums on reinsurance accepted comprise the total
premiums payable for the whole cover provided by contracts entered into the period and are
recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums include any adjustments arising
in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting in prior accounting
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periods. Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year
that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been
presented as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively,
because this is consistent with how the business is managed.

iv. Commission Income: Commission Income is recognized on an accrual basis. If the income is

for future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over those future periods.

Investment Income: Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it
accrues. Fees and commission are recognized when the company has received the right to
receive such fees and commission. Interest on policy loans is recognized on accrual basis
whereas fine and late income are only recognized on cash basis.

Net realized gains and losses: Net realized gains and losses recorded in the statement or
profit or loss include gains and losses on financial assets and properties. Gains and losses
on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference between net sales proceeds and
the original or amortized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the sale transaction.

p. Benefit, Claims and Expenses:

Gross Benefits and Claims: Benefits and claims include the cost of all claims arising during
the year, including external claims handling costs that are directly related to processing and
settlement of claims. Benefits and claims that are incurred during the financial year are
recognized when a claimable event occurs and/or the insurer is notified. Death, surrender and
other benefits without due dates are treated as claims payable, on the date of receipt of
intimation of death of the assured or occurrence of contingency covered.

Reinsurance Claims: Reinsurance claims are recognized when the related gross insurance
claim is recognized according to the term of the relevant contracts.

Commission Expenses: Commission expenses are recognized on accrual basis. If the
expense is for future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over those future periods.

Service Fees: Service fees are recognized on accrual basis as per the rates mentioned in
Insurance act, 2079.

Finance Cost: Finance costs are recognized for the period relating to unwinding of discount
and interest expenses due to re-measurement of liabilities.

g. Product Classification:

Insurance contracts are those contracts when the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant
insurance risk from another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the
policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company determines whether it has significant
insurance risk by comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur.
Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.

The Company has following portfolios under which it operates its business:
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Endowment: This is a with profit plan that makes provisions for the family of the Life Assured
in event of his early death and also assures a lump sum at a desired age on maturity. It costs
moderate premiums, has high liquidity and in savings oriented. This plan is opted for people
of all ages and social groups who wish to protect their families from a financial setback that
may occur owing to their demise.

. Anticipated Endowment: This scheme provides for specific periodic payments or partial

survival benefits during the term of the policy itself so long as the policy holder is alive. It is
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therefore suitable to meet specified financial requirements needed for occasions like Brata
Bandha, Academic Graduations etc. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death
at any time within the policy term, the death claim comprises full sum assured without
deducting any of the survival benefit amounts, which have already been paid. It is also with
profit plan.

iii. Endowment Cum Whole Life: This plan is a combination of Endowment Assurance and Whole
Life with profit plan. It provided financial protection against death throughout the lifetime of the
life assured with the provision of payment of a lump sum at the maturity of the policy to the
assured in case of his survival.

iv. Whole Life: Whole life is a type of life insurance contract that provides insurance coverage of
the contract holder for his or her entire life. Upon the inevitable death of the contract holder,
the insurance payout is made to the contract's beneficiaries. These policies also include a
savings component, which accumulates a cash value. This cash value is one of the key
elements of whole life insurance.

v. Foreign Employment Term: The main objective of foreign employment term is providing
insurance for financial assistance if there is death or elimination of any insured due to work or
staying abroad.

vi. Other Term: Term life insurance, also known as pure life insurance, is life insurance that
guarantees payment of a stated death benefit during a specified term. Once the term expires,
the policyholder can renew it for another term, convert the policy to permanent coverage, or
allow the policy to terminate.

vii. Special Term: Special Term insurance is a modified version of term insurance with added
benefits.

viii. Others to be Specified — (Anticipated Whole Life): This scheme provides for specific periodic
payments or partial survival benefits during the term of the policy itself so long as the policy
holder is alive. An important feature of plan is that in the event of death at any time within the
policy term, the death claim comprises full sum assured without deducting any of the survival
benefit amounts, which have already been paid. It provides insurance coverage for the
contract holder for his or her entire life. It is also with the profit plan.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets is
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

. Cash Flow Statement:

Cash Flows are reported using the direct method, whereby major classes of cash receipts and
cash payments are disclosed as cash flows.

Leases:
The lease liability has been accounted for under NFRS 16 “Leases”. The Company has various

operating leases ranging from 1 years to 5 years. These lease contract do not contain non-
cancellable periods. The leases are renewable by mutual consent and contain escalation clause.
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u. Income Taxes:
Income Tax Expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable & Deferred Tax.

i. Current Tax: Current Tax Expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue
and expenses relate. Provision for Current Income Tax is made for the Tax Liability payable
on Taxable Income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined
in accordance with the applicable tax rates and the prevailing tax laws.

ii. Deferred Tax: Deferred Tax is recognized on temporary difference between the carrying
amounts of Assets and Liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position and their Tax Base.
Deferred Tax Assets & Liabilities are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary
differences arising between the tax base of Assets & Liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable Profit nor Loss at the time of
the transaction.

v. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities & Contingent Assets:

i. Provisions: Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management’s best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate to determine the present value is a Pre-Tax Rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expenses.

Provisions for Contingent Liability are recognized in the books a matter of abundant
precaution and conservative approach based on management's best estimate. However,
Management believes that chances of these matters going against the company are remote
and there will not be any probable cash outflow.

ii. Contingent Liabilities: Contingent Liabilities are recognized only when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events due to occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable
estimate of the obligation cannot be made. Obligations are assessed on an ongoing basis and
only those having a largely probable outflow of resources are provided for.

iii. Contingent Assets: Contingent Assets where it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to the Company are not recognized but disclosed in the Financial Statements.

w. Functional Currency & Foreign Currency Transactions:
The Financial Statements of the Company are presented in Nepalese Rupees, which in the
Company's Functional Currency. In preparing the Financial Statements of the Company,
transactions in currencies other than the Company's Functional Currency i.e., Foreign Currencies
are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

x. Earnings Per Share:

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to owners of the company
by the Weighted Average Number of equities shares outstanding during the Financial Year.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue is
adjusted to assumed conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Operating Segment:

Operating Segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8,"Operating Segment".

Company's Income & Expenses including interest are considered as part of un-allocable Income
& Expenses which are not identifiable to any business segment. Company's Asset & Liabilities
are considered as part of un-allocable Assets & Liabilities which are not identifiable to any
business.

. Leased Assets:

The Company has made the use of leasing arrangements principally for the provision of the office
spaces. The rental contracts for the offices are typically negotiated for terms of between 1 and 5
years and some of these have extension terms. The Company has not entered into any sale and
leaseback arrangements. All the leases are negotiated on an individual basis. The Company has
assessed whether a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the company. The lease
conveys the right to direct the use and obtain substantially all of the economic benefits of an
identified assets for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

At lease commencement date, the company has recognized a right-of-use lease asset and a
lease liability in its Statement of Financial Position. The right of use assets is measured at cost.
Which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred
by the company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the
lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date.

The Company has depreciated the right of use asset on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end
of the lease term. The company has also assessed the right of use asset for impairment when
such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the company has measured the lease liability at the present value
of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the company's incremental borrowing
rate because as the lease contracts are negotiated with third parties it is not possible to determine
the interest rate that is implicit in the lease. The incremental borrowing rate is the estimated rate
that the company would have to pay to borrow the same amount over a similar term, and with
similar security to obtain an asset of equivalent value.
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Goodwill & Intangible Assets Fig. in NPR

Particulars Softwares Goodwill Others' ) Total
(to be specified)

Gross carrying amount

As at Shrawan 1, 2078 4,576,500 - - 4,576,500
Additions during the year -
Acquisition 11,300 - - 11,300

Internal Development - - - -

Business Combination( to be Specified) - - - -

Disposals during the year - - - -
Revaluation/Adjustment - - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 4,587,800 - - 4,587,800
Additions during the year
Acquisition 700,450 - - 700,450

Internal Development - - - -

Business Combination( to be Specified) - - - -

Disposals during the year - - - -

Revaluation/Adjustment - - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 5,288,250 - - 5,288,250

Accumulated amortization and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2078 1,846,797 - - 1,846,797
Additions during the year 457,933 - - 457,933

Disposals during the year - - - -

Impairment during the year - - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 2,304,730 - - 2,304,730
Additions during the year 478,435 - - 478,435

Disposals during the year - - - -
Impairment during the year - - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 2,783,165 - - 2,783,165

Capital Work-In-Progress
As on Shrawan 1, 2078

Additions during the year - - - -
Capitalisation during the year - - - -

Disposals during the year - - - -
Impairment during the year - - - -

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079 - - - -
Additions during the year - - - -

Capitalisation during the year - - - -
Disposals during the year - - - -

Impairment during the year - - - -

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080 - - - -

Net Carrying Amount

As on Ashadh 32, 2079 2,283,070 - - 2,283,070

As on Ashadh 31, 2080 2,505,085 - - 2,505,085
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5 Property and Equipment

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Land

Buildings

Leasehold
Improvement

Furniture &
Fixtures

Computers
and IT
Equipments

Office
Equipment

Vehicles

Other
Assets

Total

Gross carrying amount

As on Shrawan 1, 2078

37,214,955

24,242,800

19,289,786

13,095,725

16,931,900

110,775,165

Additions during the year

Acquisition

9,257,685

4,377,484

4,197,065

2,575,398

17,947,900

38,355,532

Capitalization

Disposals during the year

(77,500)

(5,176,000)

(5,253,500)

Write-offs during the year

Revaluation during the year

Transfer/adjustments

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079

46,472,640

28,620,284

23,409,351

15,671,123

29,703,800

143,877,198

Additions during the year

Acquisition

147,939,272

25,826,633

6,716,917

4,643,015

12,001,392

17,315,000

214,442,229

Capitalization

Disposals during the year

(55,935)

(294,000)

(1,317,940)

(1,667,875)

Write-offs during the year

(4,964,101)

(4,964,101)

Revaluation during the year

Transfer/ adjustments

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

147,939,272

67,335,173

35,281,266

27,758,365

26,354,575

47,018,800

351,687,451

Accumulated Depreciation and
impairment

As on Shrawan 1, 2078
Addition during the year
Disposals during the year
Write-offs during the year
Impairment during the year
Transfer/ adjustments

16,792,847
8,253,540

7,349,826
2,643,731

8,212,103
2,664,181
(54,214)

6,802,833
1,795,838

11,087,834
4,210,375
(4,064,133)

50,245,443
19,567,665
(4,118,347)

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079
Addition during the year
Disposals during the year
Write-offs during the year
Impairment during the year
Transfer/ adjustments

25,436,035

25,046,388
11,561,390
(2,517,370)

9,993,557
3,181,091
(37,290)

10,822,071
3,209,530
(254,440)

8,598,670
2,680,067
(890,688)

11,234,076
7,883,799

65,694,762
53,951,912

(1,182,419)
(2,517,370)

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

25,436,035

34,090,408

13,137,358

13,777,160

10,388,049

19,117,875

115,946,885

Capital Work-In-Progress

As on Shrawan 1, 2078
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079
Additions during the year
Capitalisation during the year
Disposals during the year
Impairment during the year

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080

Net Carrying Amount
As on Ashadh 32, 2079

21,426,252

18,626,727

12,587,280

7,072,452

18,469,724

78,182,436

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

122,503,237

33,244,765

22,143,908

13,981,205

15,966,526

27,900,926

235,740,566
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
6 Investment Properties Fig. in NPR
Investment Properties at Cost:

Particulars Land Building Total

Gross carrying amount | |
As at Shrawan 1, 2078 - - _

Additions during the year | - - -
Acquisition - - -

Subsequent Expenditure | - - -
Assets classified as held for sales - - -

Disposals during the year | - - -
Transfer/Adjustments - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 | - - -
Additions during the year - - -

Acquisition | - - -

Subsequent Expenditure - - -

Assets classified as held for sales | - - -

Disposals during the year - - -

Transfer/Adjustments - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

As at Shrawan 1, 2078 | - - -
Addition during the year - - -

Disposals during the year | - - -
Impairment during the year - - -

Transfer/Adjustments - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 32, 2079 - - -

Addition during the year | - - -
Disposals during the year - - -

Impairment during the year | - - -
Transfer/Adjustments - - -

Balance as at Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Capital Work-In-Progress | |
As on Shrawan 1, 2078 - - -

Additions during the year | - - -
Capitalisation during the year - - -

Disposals during the year | - - -
Impairment during the year - - -

Balance as on Ashadh 32, 2079 | - - -
Additions during the year - - -

Capitalisation during the year | - - -
Disposals during the year - - -

Impairment during the year - - -

Balance as on Ashadh 31, 2080 - - -

Net Carrying Amount

Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2079 - - -

Net Balance As At Ashad 31, 2080 - - -
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

7 Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Through SOPL | Through SOCI Total Through SOPL | Through SOCI Total
Deferred Tax on Temporary Difference
Goodwill & Intangible Assets (525,734) - (525,734) (395,900) - (395,900)
Property and Equipment (3,535,378) - (3,535,378) (2,155,983) - (2,155,983)
Financial Assets at FVPTL - - - - - -
Financial Assets at FVTOCI - 2,134,256 2,134,256 - 6,020,044 6,020,044
Provision for Leave 5,672,278 - 5,672,278 4,414,374 - 4,414,374
Provision for Gratuity - - - - -
Impairment Loss on Financial Assets 905,647 - 905,647 780,784 - 780,784
Impairment Loss on Other Assets - - - - -
Carry forward of unused tax losses 629,265,609 - 629,265,609 643,268,864 - 643,268,864
Changes in tax rate - - - - - -
Rent Equilization 1,733,864 - 1,733,864 - - -
Total 633,516,286 2,134,256 635,650,542 645,912,139 6,020,044 651,932,183
Deferred Tax Asstes 633,516,286 2,134,256 635,650,542 645,912,139 6,020,044 651,932,183
Deferred Tax Liabilities - - - - - -
Movements in Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities):
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars SOPL SOCI Total SOPL SOCI Total
As at Shrawan 1, 2079 645,912,139 6,020,044 651,932,183 417,720,635 194,433 417,915,068
Charged/(Credited) to Statement of Profit or Loss (12,395,853) - (12,395,853) 228,191,504 - 228,191,504
Charged/(Credited) to Other Comprehensive Income - (3,885,788) (3,885,788) - 5,825,611 5,825,611
As at Ashadh 31, 2080 633,516,286 2,134,257 635,650,542 645,912,139 6,020,044 651,932,183

[AlETol IS SoIANRGA bdUoil [AfACS




Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
8 Investment in Subsidiaries Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Susidiaries - -

Investment in Unquoted Susidiaries - -

Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total - -

Investment in Quoted Subsidiaries:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - -
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - -
Total - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Subsidiaries:
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - -

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - -

Total - - - -

Information Relating to Subsidiaries:

. Percentage of Ownership
Particulars

Current Year Previous Year

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - -

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - -

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - -

........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - -
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Investment in Associates Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year

Investment in Quoted Associates - -

Investment in Unquoted Associates - -

Less: Impairment Losses - -

Total - -

Investment in Quoted Associates

. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
Investment in Unquoted Associates
X Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method Cost Fair Value (or) Equit Method
........... Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
.. Shares of ..... Rs. Eachof ....... Ltd. - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Earlier Years - - - - - -
Add: Share of Profit or Loss for Current Year - - - - - -
Total - - - - - -
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(b)

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Investments

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investments measured at Amortised Cost
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
ii) Investment in Debentures
i) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
iv) Fixed Deposits in "A" Class Financial Institutions
v) Fixed Deposits in Infrastructure Banks
vi) Fixed Deposits in "B" Class Financial Institutions
vii) Fixed Deposits in "C" Class Financial Institutions
viii) Others ( to be Specified)
Less: Impairment Losses

Investments at FVTOCI
i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)
ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
iii) Investment in Mutual Funds
iv) Investment in Debentures
v) Others - Impairment Losses

Investments at FVTPL

i) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

ii) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)
i) Investment in Mutual Funds

iv) Investment in Debentures

v) Others ( to be Specified)

11,856,301,000

8,366,889,000

3,745,601,000

7,078,000,000

3,024,189,000

4,520,000,000

100,000,000 -
907,700,000 817,700,000
25,000,000 5,000,000
270,848,590 89,761,290
125,493,330 38,416,494
33,430,000 26,945,000
117,675,260 24,399,796
(5,750,000) -

Total

12,127,149,590

8,456,650,290

Details of Impairment Losses:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)
Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks

Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions

Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Investments having expected maturies less than 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions

Investment in Debentures

Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/NRB/Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

Fixed Deposit with"A" Class Financial Institutions 788,000,000 650,000,000
Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Banks - -
Fixed Deposit with"B" Class Financial Institutions 179,700,000 115,000,000
Fixed Deposit with"C" Class Financial Institutions 25,000,000 -
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 992,700,000 765,000,000
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
10 Investments Fig. in NPR
(c) Information relating to investment in equity instruments:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Units Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted) (Face Value of Rs. 100 Each) 131,312,135 | 125,493,330 | 61,502,986 | 38,416,494
Everest Bank Ltd. 36,268 24,571,968 20,418,884 | 24,571,968 | 14,089,705
Himalayan Bank Ltd. 2,425 1,033,845 516,040 1,033,845 671,704
Nepal Investment Mega Bank Ltd. 3,115 1,038,281 479,399 1,038,281 709,798
Nepal SBI Bank Ltd. 299 121,057 101,959 121,057 81,867
NMB Bank Ltd. 45,000 18,528,957 10,170,000 | 18,528,957 | 11,745,000
Arun Kabeli Power Ltd. 15,750 4,986,338 3,693,375 4,236,338 3,442,500
Global IME Bank Ltd. 1,060 251,991 197,160 251,991 227,100
Deprosc Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 660 913,042 545,160 913,042 564,000
Jyoti Bikas Bank Ltd. 8 1,465 2,384 1,465 2,418
Machhapuchhre Bank Ltd. 997 375,591 231,105 375,591 253,238
Mirmire Microfinance Development Bank Ltd. 12 11,774 8,508 11,774 10,500
Kumari Bank Ltd. 413 108,630 68,145 108,630 87,102
NIC Asia Bank Ltd. 7,500 7,431,060 5,953,500 7,431,060 5,220,000
Microfinance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 4 6,231 2,560 6,231 3,000
Sana Kisan Bikas Bank Ltd 125 176,683 112,375 176,683 133,125
Shivam Cements Ltd. 1,500 2,657,405 977,250 2,657,405 1,140,000
Soaltee Hotel Ltd. 184 38,667 89,240 38,667 35,438
Kumari Bank Ltd. (Promoter) 500,000 46,707,875 56,850,000 - -
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (Promoter) 39,429 19,158,443 19,158,445 - -
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. 6,571 3,192,831 5,917,843 - -
Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted) 33,430,000 33,430,000 | 26,945,000 | 26,945,000
Insurance Institute of Nepal Ltd 47,800 4,780,000 4,780,000 1,195,000 1,195,000
Macchapuchre Capital Ltd. 57,500 5,750,000 5,750,000 5,750,000 5,750,000
White Lotus Power Ltd. 129,000 12,900,000 12,900,000 | 10,000,000 | 10,000,000
Vision Lumbini Urja Company Ltd. 100,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 | 10,000,000 | 10,000,000
Investment in Mutual Funds (Face Value Rs. 10 Each) 120,393,478 | 117,675,260 | 25,393,478 @ 24,399,796
Global IME Samunnat Scheme-1 50,000 735,981 481,500 735,981 500,000
Kumari Dhanabriddhi Yojana 500,000 5,000,000 5,020,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Nabil Balanced Fund-2 50,700 563,542 446,160 563,542 546,546
NIBL Samriddhi Fund -2 500,000 5,000,000 4,555,000 5,000,000 4,335,000
NIC Asia Flexi Cap Fund 500,000 5,000,000 5,085,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
NMB 50 402,500 5,047,663 4,226,250 5,047,663 5,192,250
Prabhu Select Fund 250,000 2,500,000 2,212,500 2,500,000 2,402,500
Sanima Equity Fund 100,000 1,376,756 1,180,000 1,376,756 1,275,000
Laxmi Equity Fund 15,000 169,536 143,850 169,536 148,500
NMB Sulav Investment Fund-2 500,000 5,000,000 4,995,000 - -
Global IME Balance Fund -1 500,000 5,000,000 4,670,000 - -
Nabil Flexi Cap Fund 500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -
NIBL Growth Fund 500,000 5,000,000 5,320,000 - -
Sunrise Focused Equity Fund 500,000 5,000,000 4,840,000 - -
Prabhu Smart Fund 5,000,000 50,000,000 = 49,500,000 - -
Siddhartha Investment Growth Scheme 3 500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -
Citizens Super 30 Mutual Fund 1,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 - -
RBB Mutual Fund 2 500,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 - -

(d) The company has earmarked investments amounting to NPR 7,850,700,000 to Nepal Insurance Authority.
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Loans Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Loans measured at Amortised Cost
Loan to Employees 39,046,324 38,674,673
Loan to Agents 30,958,777 33,124,581
Loan to Policyholders 568,189,106 321,836,653
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses (3,622,586) (3,123,137)
Total 634,571,621 390,512,770
Loans to Policyholders:
Particulars Loan amount Interest Income
Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year
Endowment 221,922,748 108,824,117 19,239,606 9,326,768
Anticipated Endowment 53,566,591 15,616,656 2,337,449 1,119,941
Endowment cum Whole Life 292,699,767 197,395,880 30,862,756 17,807,062
Whole Life - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - - -
Micro Term - - - -
Special Term - - - -
Others ( to be Specified) - - - -
Total 568,189,106 321,836,653 52,439,811 28,253,771
Expected repayment of loan within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Loan to Employees 275,390 342,909
Loan to Agents 4,235,697 5,339,341
Loan to Policyholders - -
Others ( to be Specified) - -
Total 4,511,087 5,682,250

Reinsurance Assets

Policy liabilities and

Claim Payment Reserve

Impairment Losses

Net Reinsurance Assets

Description Provisions . .

Current year Previous Current year Previous Current year | Previous Year | Current year | Previous Year

Year Year

Endowment - - - 592,500 - - - 592,500
Anticipated Endowment - - - - - - - -
Endowment cum Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Whole Life - - - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - 5,107 - - - 5,107 -
Micro Term - - 88,000 1,932,853 - - 88,000 1,932,853
Special Term - - - - - - - -
Others ( to be Specified) - - - - - - - -
Total - - 93,107 2,525,353 - - 93,107 2,525,353
Insurance Receivables
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurer 3,133,241 -
Receivable from other Insurance Companies 43,543,136 -
Others( to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 46,676,376 -
Expected receivable within 12 months:
Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Receivable from Reinsurer 3,133,241 -
Receivable from Other Insurance Companies 43,543,136 -
Others( to be Specified) - -
Total 46,676,376 -
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Other Assets

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

Prepaid Expenses

28,919,894

4,106,000
593,991

Claim Advances
Advance To Suppliers

Staff Advances
Printing and Stationary Stocks

6,732,068

8,338,729

Stamp Stocks
Deferred Expenses

7,112,632

Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses
Deferred Agent Commission Expenses

Lease Receivables
Others (to be specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

35,686,102

20,151,352

Expected to be recovered/ settled within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Capital Advances

4,106,000

Prepaid Expenses
Claim Advances

28,919,894

593,991

Advance To Suppliers
Staff Advances

6,732,068

8,338,729

Printing and Stationary Stocks
Stamp Stocks

Deferred Expenses
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Expenses

Deferred Agent Commission Expenses

Lease Receivables

Others (to be specified)

Total

35,686,102

13,038,720
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Other Financial Assets

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits 5,670,300 396,330
Accured Interest 149,040,674 103,430,815
Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 60,653,296 29,828,005
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits - -
Sundry Debtors 2,376,993 2,213,998
Others (to be Specified) - -
Less: Impairment Losses - -
Total 217,741,263 135,869,148

Expected maturies within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Security Deposits - -
Accured Interest 149,040,674 103,430,815
Interest Receivable from Loan to Policyholders 60,653,296 29,828,005
Other Receivables - -
Other Deposits - -
Sundry Debtors 2,376,993 2,213,998
Other ( to be Specified) - -
Total 212,070,963 135,472,818

Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Cash in Hand
Cheque in Hand

12,217,196

401,085

Bank Balances
i) Balance With"A" Class Financial Institutions

369,300,145

242,418,806

ii) Balance With Infrastructure Banks
iii) Balance With"B" Class Financial Institutions

83,379,709

59,349,784

iv) Balance With"C" Class Financial Institutions
Less: Impairment Losses

Deposit with initial maturity upto 3 months
Others (to be Specified)

Less: Impairment Losses

Total

464,897,050

302,169,675
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

17 (a) Share Capital

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Ordinary Shares

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

1,750,000,000

1,750,000,000

Additions during the year

i) Bonus Share Issue

i) Share Issue (Right Share Issue)

875,000,000

As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Irredeemable Preference Shares (Equity Component only)

As at Shrawan 1, 2079

Additions during the year

As at Ashadh 31, 2080

Total

2,625,000,000

1,750,000,000

(i) Ordinary Shares

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Authorised Capital:

50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each. 5,000,000,000 2,500,000,000
Issued Capital:

37,500,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each. 3,750,000,000 1,750,000,000
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

26,250,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 100 Each. 2,625,000,000 1,750,000,000
Total 2,625,000,000 1,750,000,000

(ii) Preference Share Capital

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Authorised Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Issued Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital:

........ Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

........Irredeemable Preference Shares of Rs. XXX Each

Total

Shareholding Structure of Share Capital:

Particulars

Number of Shares

Percentage

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Promoters

Government of Nepal

Nepali Organized Institutions 6,615,000 4,410,000 25% 25%
Nepali Citizens 19,635,000 13,090,000 75% 75%
Foreigners
Others ( to be Specified)
Total (A) 26,250,000 17,500,000 100% 100%
Other than Promoters
General Public
Others (to be Specified)
Total (B) - - - -
Total(A+B) 26,250,000 17,500,000 100% 100%
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

17 (a) Share Capital )Continue ........)
Details of shareholders holding 1% or more than 1% of the aggregate shares in the Company:

Particulars Number of Shares Percentage

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Kantipur Publications Pvt. Ltd. 1,950,000 | 1,300,000 | 7.43% 7.43%
Sumit Kumar Agrawal 1,950,000 | 1,300,000 | 7.43% 7.43%
Pradeep Jung Pandey 1,375,000 | 750,000 | 5.24% 4.29%
Bikash J.B. Rana 1,350,000 | 900,000 | 5.14% 5.14%
Sushma Rana 1,350,000 | 900,000 | 5.14% 5.14%
Yeti World Investment Pvt. Ltd. 1,350,000 | 900,000 | 5.14% 5.14%
Air Dynasty Heli Services Pvt. Ltd. 802,500 | 535,000 | 3.06% 3.06%
Jyoti Prakash Pandey 600,000 | 400,000 | 2.29% 2.29%
Lalita Agrawal 600,000 | 400,000 | 2.29% 2.29%
Urmila Panday 600,000 | 400,000 | 2.29% 2.29%
Rajendra Prasad Shrestha 525,000 | 350,000 | 2.00% 2.00%
Ram Agrawal 495,000 | 330,000 | 1.89% 1.89%
Goodwill Finance Ltd. 450,000 | 300,000 | 1.71% 1.71%
Premier Wires Pvt. Ltd. 450,000 | 300,000 | 1.711% 1.711%
Anuja Laxmi Dhital 360,000 | 240,000 | 1.37% 1.37%
Cabinet Shrestha 360,000 | 240,000 | 1.37% 1.37%
Sujan Baidhya (Shrestha) 360,000 | 240,000 | 1.37% 1.37%
Sandip Pakhrin Lama 337,500 | 225,000 | 1.29% 1.29%
Saugat Pakhrin Lama 337,500 | 225,000 | 1.29% 1.29%
Prithvi Bahadur Pande 322,500 | 215,000 | 1.23% 1.23%
Shikhar Insurance Co. Ltd. 322,500 | 215,000 | 1.23% 1.23%
Himalayan Infrastrucutre Fund Ltd. 300,000 | 200,000 | 1.14% 1.14%

17 (b) Share Application Money Pending Allotment
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Share Application Money Pending Allotment - -
Total - -
17 (c) Share Premium
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 - -
Increase due to issue of shares at premium - -
Decrease due to issue of bonus shares - -
Transaction costs on issue of share - -
Increase due to auction of right shares 13,037,437 | -
As on Ashadh 31, 2080 13,037,437 -
J1af afiies UfdidcaT Q0TO — Ko —



17 (d)

17 (e)

17 (f)

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Catastrophe Reserves

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
As on Shrawan 1, 2079 125,750,988 90,141,421
Additions 11,499,203 35,609,567
Utilizations - -
As on Ashadh 31, 2080 137,250,191 125,750,988

Retained Earnings

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

As on Shrawan 1, 2079

Net Profit or Loss

Iltems of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurement of Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
Transfer to reserves

Revaluation Reserves

Capital Reserves

Catastrophe Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves
Insurance Fund

Fair Value Reserves

Actuarial Reserves

Deferred Tax Reserve

Regulatory Reserve

Other Reserve(to be specified)

Transfer of Depreciation on Revaluation of Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Revalued Property and Equipment

Transfer of Disposal of Equity Instruments Measured at FVTOCI

Issue of Bonus Shares

Transaction costs on issue of Shares
Dividend Paid

Dividend Distribution Tax

Transfer to Insurance Contract Liability
Others ( to be Specified)

477,196,178
102,596,173

(11,499,203)
(1,149,920)
12,395,853

394,212,541
376,071,909

(35,609,567)
(3,560,957)

(228,191,504)
(25,726,244)

As on Ashadh 31, 2080

579,539,081

477,196,178

Other Equity

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Revaluation Reserves
Capital Reserves

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserves 2,568,654 3,560,957
Insurance Fund - -

Fair Value Reserves (6,402,767) (18,060,131)
Actuarial Reserves - -

Deferred Tax Reserve 633,516,286 645,912,139
Other Reserve (Regulatory Reserve) 27,495,610 33,245,610
Total 657,177,783 664,658,575

_L\c_
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

18 Provisions

Fig. in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous
Year

Provision for employee benefits

i) Provision for Leave

22,689,111

17,657,495

i) Provision for Gratuity

ii)Termination Benefits

iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified)

Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases

Others (to be Specified)

Total

22,689,111

17,657,495

(a) Movement of Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Additions
During the
Year

Opening

Description Balance

Utilised
During the
Year

Reversed
During the
Year

Unwinding of
Discount

Closing
Balance

Provision for Employee Benefits

i) Provision for Leave 17,657,495 5,031,616
ii) Provision for Gratuity - -

22,689,111

iii)Termination Benefits - -
iv) Other Employee Benefit obligations (to be Specified) - -

Provision for tax related legal cases - -
Provision for non-tax related legal cases - -

Others( to be Specified) - -

(b) Provision with expected payouts within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year ' Previous Year

Provision for Employee Benefits
i) Provision for Leave

ii) Provision for Gratuity
ii) Termination Benefits

iv) Other employee benefit obligations( to be Specified)
Provision for tax related legal cases

Provision for non-tax related legal cases
Others (to be Specified)
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(i)

(ii)

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Life Insurance Fund as per Actuary Report (19.1) 10,034,711,262 6,518,737,543
Claim Payment Reserve including IBNR (19.2) 169,450,065 245,833,437

Transfer from:

Fair Value Reserve - -

Actuarial Reserve - -
Revaluation Reserve - -

Other Reserve - -
Net gain on fair value changes on FVTPL instruments - -

Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties - -
Share of Profit of Associates accounted as per Equity Method - -

Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Associates Accounted for using the Equity Method - -

Total 10,204,161,327 6,764,570,980

Notes on the cash-flows considered for valuation of liabilities:
NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries. A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) as prescribed

in NFRS 4 is similar to Actuary Valuation as per existing valuation framework under the Insurance Act 2079 and was performed by Mr. Navin
Vishwanath lyer, a professional actuary as required by NFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts in order to assess the adequacy of the carrying amount of
the provision for unexpired risk, outstanding claim, appropriation for shareholders and Life Fund. The valuation is based on actuarial methods
prescribed in Insurance Act and directives.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and carrying amount of Insurance Fund and a liability adequacy test is performed
to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This calculation
uses current estimates of future contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on assets relevant to life
insurance technical provisions. If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the Life Fund and unearned premiums is inadequate, the
deficiency is recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy.

Notes on valuation methods and assumptions:
The long-term liabilities for all the individual base products have been determined at a policy level prospectively using a Gross Premium

Valuation (GPV) methodology, as required by Nepal Insurance Authority's Regulations.

These liabilities are computed at policy level using the internally developed spreadsheet models.

All Individual products are modelled in these programs which project the cash flows at monthly intervals till the end of their policy terms.

For Group term life the UPR approach was adopted to estimate the reserves. For Group Affinity Gross Premium Valuation (GPV) methodology
was used.

The valuation assumptions are also given in Note 46 of this financial statements.

(iii) Notes on the discounting policy:

The valuation rate of interest used for the computation of liabilities is 6%, which is as prescribed by the Nepal Insurance Authority guidelines.
This has a high margin for prudence compared to the expected long term investment return of the Company of at least 9.50% p.a. The average
mean yields earned during the year were 11.70% for par, 9.83% for non-par and 11.58% overall.

(iv) Notes on aggregation practises:

v)

_io_

It may be noted that the reserves are computed separately for each policy. The results are then presented by product, policy status etc.

Any other disclosures as required:
Reserves are adequate to meet the policyholder liabilities with adequate prudence, and the Company is sufficiently solvent on the statutory basis

as on the date of valuation viz. July 16, 2023 with Solvency Ratio of 182% before considering Cost of Bonus and 135% after considering Cost of
Bonus.
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Insurance Payable Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurer 9,198,540 78,154,425
Payable to other Insurance Companies - 17,925,198
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 9,198,540 96,079,623

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Payable to Reinsurer 9,198,540 78,154,425
Payable to other Insurance Companies - 17,925,198
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 9,198,540 96,079,623

Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Income Tax Liabilities

Income Tax Assets 327,511,843 243,253,224
Total 327,511,843 243,253,224
Borrowings

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Bonds - -
Debentures - -

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Bonds
Debentures

Term Loans-Bank and Financial Institution
Bank Overdrafts

Others (to be Specified)

Total
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Other Liabilities Fig. in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS Payable 21,639,620 45,557,275
Unidentified deposits 30,934,385 22,069,237
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 48,343,421 53,075,467
Lease Liability 129,438,692 -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income - -
Deferred Income - -
Others(to be specified) - -
Total 230,356,119 120,701,979

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
TDS Payable 21,639,620 45,557,275
Unidentified deposits 30,934,385 22,069,237
Advance Premiums - -
Insurance Service Fee Payable 48,343,421 53,075,467
Lease Liability 129,438,692 -
Deferred Reinsurance Commission Income - -
Deferred Income - -
Others(to be specified) - -
Total 230,356,119 120,701,979

Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares

Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Agents 189,557,120 205,961,448
Sundry Creditors 33,278,925 22,045,514
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payables 6,561,877 9,634,488
ii) Bonus Payables 12,776,892 24,872,513
iii) Other employee benefits 800 246,211
Audit Fees Payable 491,550 1,039,600
Actuarial Fees Payable 3,074,880 -
Dividend Payable - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Payable to Staffs 3,394,352 2,825,786
House Rent Payable 470,096 50,604
Agent License Fee Payable 207,066 237,518
Total 249,813,558 266,913,683

RIfE3Tal IS $o3ARGA hbdUall IACS




Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Payable within 12 months:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Redeemable Preference Shares
Irredemable Cumulative Preference Shares

Refundable Share Application Money

Payable to Agents 189,557,120 205,961,448
Sundry Creditors 33,278,925 22,045,514
Retention and deposits - -
Short-term employee benefits payable - -
i) Salary Payables 6,561,877 9,634,488
ii) Bonus Payables 12,776,892 24,872,513
iii) Other employee benefit payable ( to be Specified) 800 246,211
Audit Fees Payable 491,550 1,039,600
Actuarial Fees Payable 3,074,880 -
Dividend Payable - -
Others (to be specified) - -
Payable to Staffs 3,394,352 2,825,786
House Rent Payable 470,096 50,604
Agent License Fee Payable 207,066 237,518
Total 249,813,558 266,913,683
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Commission Income

Fig.in NPR

Reinsurance Commission

Profit Commission

Total Commission Income

Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year = Current Year = Previous Year
Endowment - - 15,710,929 5,629,026 15,710,929 5,629,026
Anticipated Endowment - - 22,242,102 9,077,629 22,242,102 9,077,629
Endowment Cum Whole Life - - 6,537,797 3,421,872 6,537,797 3,421,872
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term - - 680,238 - 680,238 -
Micro Term - - 6,705,111 13,287 6,705,111 13,287
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total - - 51,876,177 18,141,814 51,876,177 18,141,814
Other Direct Income

Other Direct Income Late Fees Total Other Direct Income

Particulars

Current Year | Previous Year | Current Year | Previous Year = Current Year = Previous Year
Endowment - - 6,113,986 3,224,771 6,113,986 3,224,771
Anticipated Endowment - - 5,752,283 4,419,281 5,752,283 4,419,281
Endowment Cum Whole Life - - 3,806,152 3,163,349 3,806,152 3,163,349
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 22,323 - - 96,356 22,323 96,356
Micro Term - - 2,391 - 2,391 -
Special Term - - - - - -
Othes( to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 22,323 - 15,674,812 10,903,757 15,697,135 10,903,757

Income from Investments and Loans

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Interest Income from Financial Assets Designated at Amortised Costs

i) Fixed Deposit with "A" Class Financial Institutions 611,426,709 346,820,712
ii) Fixed Deposit with Infrastructure Bank 6,710,958 -
iii) Fixed Deposit with "B" Class Financial Institutions 94,734,365 100,049,246
iv) Fixed Deposit with "C" Class Financial Institutions 966,520 148,158
v) Debentures 338,299,707 245,927,474
vi) Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) - -
vii) Bank Deposits other than Fixed Deposit 5,155,319 3,360,473
viii) Agent Loans 2,750,052 2,651,339
ix) Employee Loans 3,359,272 2,933,785
x) Other Interest Income (to be Specified) - -

Financial Assets Measured at FVTOCI - -

i) Interest Income on Debentures - -
ii) Dividend Income 1,959,022 3,079,070
iii) Other Interest Income ( to be specified) - -

Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL - -

i) Interest Income on Debentures - -
ii) Dividend Income - -
iii) Other Interest Income (to be specified) - -

Rental Income - -
Profit on Sale of Investment - 622,696
Others (to be Specified) - -
Total 1,065,361,926 705,592,953

_ic_

[AlETol IS SoIANRGA bdUoil [AfACS




30

31

32

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Net Gain/(Loss) on Fair Value Changes

Fig.in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

iii) Others (to be specified)

Changes in Fair Value on Investment Properties

Changes in Fair Value on Hedged Items in Fair Value Hedges

Changes in Fair Value on Hedging Instruments in Fair Value Hedges

Other (to be Specified)

Total - -
Net Realised Gains/(Losses)

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets Measured at FVTPL - -

i) Equity Instruments

i) Mutual Fund

ii) Debentures

iv) Others (to be specified)

Realised Gain/(Losses) on Derecognition of Financial Assets at Amortised Costs

i) Debentures

i) Bonds

ii) Others (to be specified)

Total

Other Income

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

i) Employee Loan

4,117,769

i) Bonds

ii) Others (to be Specified)

Foreign Exchange Income

Interest Income from Finance Lease

Amortization of Deferred Income

Profit from disposal of Property and Equipment

175,294

Amortization of Deferred Income

Stamp Income

Other Income

1,118,100

22,635

Total

1,293,394

4,140,404

Jral affes Ufdidcel 20TO



€12°211°982°L | 196'818°206°L | €20°0€9°02 901°5eS'ce 8€8'GLY'LE 60L€8¥'8LL 120°'0€T 9V L 162'628'G.6 - 006°LES'L 182°182'/8Y | S6G'E€EY' V8L |eloL
- - - - - - - - - - - - (payioads aq 03) s18Uyl0
- - - - - - - - - - - - wia] |eoads
€€¥'GG2'65¢C 209'2v7L '89S 68z'zeL 120°L9S - - - - - - 8¥1'€25'85¢ 1€G°185°29G wia] OLIN
822'160°2SL 089'01L9'0L1 129'Svy 000°08S - - - - - - 109'6Y9'LSL 089°0€0'9L L wia] juswAholdwz ubiaio
- - - - - - - - - - - - aJI7 9loyMm
91.'661'8¢€ 969'6€8'C. 981'6.0°L G66'2EE'9 G85'061 8L 128'95€°1S - - - 006°LES"} S¥6'622'€L 086°L19'EL 8JI7 8]oYM WD juswmopuy
601°258'€8. 6¥0°L0L'G20'L | 0006189 62LLLL'L 8€L292'L 69L'GYS'SL 120'0€C 9V L 162'628'G.6 - - 056°0vS'6C 006'8¥5'9C Juswmopuz pajedionuy
L2L'EVY'CS G€6'vZL'0Ch G/6'€SS'S Lie'ess’, sLL'glozL 6LL18S'LS - - - - LE9LY8'VE 505°099'09 Juswimopu3g
Jea A snolnald JBaA juaingd Jea A snolnald Jes A juaingd Jea\ snolnald JBBA Jualny JeaA snolnald Jes A juaungd JeaA snolnald JeaA juaun) Jea A snolnald JeaA uaungd
swie|) pue sjyauag SSoU9) |ejo] sjjpuag pue swieD JBayl0 wiej) Japuaiung sjyouag Ajunjep |eiled sjyouag Aunjep wie|D yieaqg SIEnoRed

pled wie|) pue spjouag Ssoio o sjiejaq
G80'666'89L°L | 6G8°160'GE9'L | 8CL'8LL'LLI 201°22.'192 €12°211'982°L | 196'818°206'L lejol
- - - - - - (payoeds aq 0} ) s18Ui0
- _ - - - - wJe] [evadg
25¥'041'602 10€'G29°'29¢ 186'780' VS 10€'215°002 €€1'652'652 20921 '89G wia | 001N
L8e'eve'vel 089'052'€0l Lv8'Lv1'lT 000'09¢'€l 822'160°CS1 089'01L9'9L1 wia] JuswAoidwz ubieso
- - - h h - 3JI7 3oYM
9l/'ege'ee 960°268'59 000°9¥%L°‘G 009°2¥6°9 91.'66%'8¢ 969'6£8°2. 8J17 8OYA\ WIND JusMOpUT
60LZL¥'G9. | 670'682°800°L | 000°0VF'8L 000ZL8'9L | 604°2G8°€8. | 6¥0'L0L'GZO} Juswmopu3 pejediopuy
L12¥'vLL'0p ¥€.'7€0'06 00€'669' |1 102'060'0€ 12l'eLy'es §€6'vel ozl juswmopug
JBOA SNOIABIY | JEBAJUBLIND | JBBA SNOIABIH | JBOA JUBLND | JBOA SNOIABIJ | JesA jualn)
pled swielo 19N pepa) swiely pled SWIEID PUE Syoueg SSOIO S/enonEd

HdN urbiy

Sjuawiaje)g [eloueUl4 dY) 0} SAJON

pajwi] Auedwog asueinsu| 9j1 uazni)

papa) swie|) pue pied swie|) ‘sjyauag ssol9

L'ee

€€

RIfE3Tal IS $o3ARGA hbdUall IACS

Qo



34 Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig.in NPR

Gross Change in Insurance

Change in Reinsurance Assets

Net Change in Insurance Contract

Particulars Contract Liabilities Liabilities

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Endowment 2,158,899,240 | 1,654,080,409 592,500 (15,095,727) 2,159,491,740 | 1,638,984,682
Anticipated Endowment 377,360,720 321,860,846 - 4,745,752 377,360,720 326,606,597
Endowment cum Whole Life 796,872,640 644,202,984 - (1,263,281) 796,872,640 642,939,702
Whole Life - - - - - -
Foreign Employment Term 23,050,909 (5,563,958) (5,107) 420,000 23,045,802 (5,143,958)
Micro Term 83,406,838 180,623,825 1,844,853 (1,621,453) 85,251,691 179,002,372
Special Term - - - - - -
Others ( to be Specified) - - - - - -
Total 3,439,590,347 | 2,795,204,105 2,432,246 (12,814,710) | 3,442,022,593 | 2,782,389,395
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40

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee Benefits Expenses Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salaries 96,344,550 91,474,086
Allowances 83,225,682 85,271,874
Festival Allowances 12,690,223 11,574,359
Defined Benefit Plans - -

i) Gratuity 8,026,480 6,483,394

ii) Others -Leave Encashment 7,512,382 6,863,537
Defined Contribution Plans - -

i) Provident Fund/ Social Security Fund 11,245,009 9,077,641

ii) Others ( to be specified) - -
Leave Encashments
Termination Benefits - -
Training Expenses 4,331,493 3,247,546
Uniform Expenses - -
Medical Expenses - -
Insurance Expenses 1,261,891 1,276,986
Welfare 270,330 276,687
Refreshment Expenses 3,416,066 2,567,230
Amortization of Deferred Employee Expenses - 4,117,760
Overtime - -
Outsource and Support Facilities 26,598,621 -
Sub-Total 254,922,727 222,231,100
Employees Bonus 12,776,892 13,471,712
Total 267,699,619 235,702,812
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Amortization of Goodwill & Intangible Assets (Refer Note. 4) 478,435 457,933
Depreciation on Property and Equipment (Refer Note.5) 53,951,912 19,567,662
Depreciation on Investment Properties (Refer Note. 6) - -
Total 54,430,347 20,025,595

Impairment Losses

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Impairment Losses on Property and Equipment, Investment Properties, Goodwill &
Intangible Assets

i) Property and Equipment

i) Investment properties
iii) Goodwill & Intangible Assets

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets
i) Investments

499,449

1,311,027

ii) Loans
i) Other Financial Assets

499,449

1,311,027

iv) Cash and Cash Equivalents
v) Others ( to be Specified)

Impairment Losses on Other Assets
i) Reinsurance Assets

ii) Insurance Receivables
ii) Lease Receivables

iv) Others (to be Specified)

Total

499,449

1,311,027

Jral affes Ufdidcel 20TO

— 93 —



Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

41 Other Operating Expenses Fig.in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Rent Expenses 32,462,740 49,247,744
Electricity and Water 3,304,090 3,141,595
Repair & Maintenance - -

i) Building - -

ii) Vehicle 1,632,409 1,034,811
i) Office Equipments 968,232 243,404
iv) Others(to be Specified) 3,074,502 51,825
Telephone & Communication 6,321,545 6,635,476
Printing & Stationary 10,545,637 11,270,321
Office Consumable Expenses 348,259 534,647
Travelling Expenses - -

i) Domestic 4,723,821 5,198,072
ii) Foreign - -

Transportation Expenses 13,318,756 10,877,135
Agents Training 466,058 1,018,115
Agents Others 219,387,459 366,046,061
Insurance Premium 1,141,889 632,081
Security and Outsourcing Expenses 2,006,908 1,873,051
Legal and Consulting Expenses 682,024 1,132,271
Newspapers, Books and Periodicals 581,377 1,700
Advertisement & Promotion Expenses 9,151,717 6,015,746
Business Promotion 24,449,597 31,045,860
Guest Entertainment 139,557 304,462
Gift and Donations - 750,000
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses - -

i) Meeting Allowances 1,810,000 681,000
i) Other Allowances 46,482 80,811
Other Committee/ Sub-committee Expenses - -

i) Meeting Allowances 940,000 462,500
i) Other Allowances - -

General Meeting Expenses 1,044,286 185,532
Actuarial Service Fee 3,575,825 2,291,394
Other Actuarial Expenses - -

Audit Related Expenses - -

i) Statutory Audit 372,900 339,000
i) Tax Audit 73,450 73,450
ii) Long Form Audit Report 56,500 56,500
iv) Other Fees 617,536 508,858
v) Internal Audit 226,000 226,000
vi) Others (to be Specified) - -

Bank Charges 3,828,628 4,228,291
Fee and Charges 5,661,588 4,132,703
Postage Charges 1,409,395 1,371,720
Foreign Exchange Losses - -

Tea/Canteen Expenses 7,177,740 6,550,386
Office Running Costs 7,892,507 6,586,806
Writeoff Expenses 2,446,731 60,693
Anniversary Expenses 292,044 -

FE Management Expenses - 8,548,424
Others (to be Specified) -

Sub-Total 372,178,188 533,438,442
Medical Examination Fee 5,580,511 14,280,271
Fines, Interest, Late Fees and Penalties 2,739,138 138,100
Total 380,497,838 547,856,813
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
42 Finance Cost Fig.in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Unwinding of discount on Provisions - -

Unwinding of discount on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Costs - -

Interest Expenses - Bonds - -

Interest Expenses - Debentures - -

Interest Expenses - Term Loans - -

Interest Expenses - Leases 9,672,289 -
Interest Expenses - Overdraft Loans - -
Premium on Debenture 34,140 34,140

Others (to be Specified) - -

Total 9,706,429 34,140

43 Income Tax Expense

(a) Income Tax Expense:

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Tax

i) Income Tax Expenses for the Year

i) Income Tax Relating to Prior Periods

Deferred Tax For The Year 12,395,853 (228,191,504)
i) Originating and reversal of temporary differences 15,896,667 2,685,008
i) Changes in tax rate - -
iii) Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses (3,500,814) (230,876,512)
iv) Write-down or reversal - -
v) Others ( to be Specified) - -
Income Tax Expense 12,395,853 (228,191,504)

(b) Reconciliation of Taxable Profit & the Accounting Profit:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Accounting Profit Before Tax 114,992,026 147,880,405
Applicable Tax Rate 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable rate on Accounting Profit 28,748,006 36,970,101
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 1,352,837,312 944,806,980

Less: Tax effect on exempt income and additional deduction

(1,370,307,565)

(1,209,991,221)

Less: Adjustments to Current Tax for Prior Periods

Add/ (Less): Others income 1,118,100 22,635
Income Tax Expense 12,395,853 (228,191,504)
Effective Tax Rate 10.78% -154%
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

44 Employee Retirement Benefits:

()

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(9)

Post Employment Benefit - Defined Contribution Plans:

Fig. in NPR

For the year ended Ashadh 31, 2080 (July 16th, 2023) the company has recognised an amount of NPR. 11,245,009 as an expenses under the defined

contribution plans in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Post Employment Benefit - Defined Benefit Plans:

For Defined Benefit Plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with Actuarial Valuations being carried

Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Current Year

Previous Year

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost

7,512,382

6,483,394

Net Interest Cost (a-b)
a. Interest expense on defined benefit obligation (DBO)

b. Interest (income) on plan assets

Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss

7,512,382

6,483,394

Remeasurement effects recognised in Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Current Year

Previous Year

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

a. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to financial assumption changes in DBO

b. Actuarial (gain)/ loss due to experience on DBO

c. Return on plan assets (greater)/ less than discount rate

Total actuarial (gain)/ loss included in OCI

Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income:

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Cost recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss 7,512,382 6,483,394 - -
Remeasurements effects recognised in OCI - - - -
Total cost recognised in Comprehensive Income 7,512,382 6,483,394 - -

Change in Defined Benefit Obligation:

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of the year 17,657,495 13,099,700 - -
Service cost 7,512,382 6,863,537 - -
Interest cost - - - -
Benefit payments from plan assets (2,480,766) (2,305,742) - -
Actuarial (gain)/ loss - financial assumptions - - - -
Actuarial (gain)/ Loss - experience - - - -
Defined Benefit Obligation as at Year End 22,689,111 17,657,495 - -

Change in Fair Value Of Plan Assets:

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year

Previous Year

Current Year

Previous Year

Fair value of plan assets at end of prior year

Interest Income
Expected return on plan assets

Employer contributions
Participant contributions

Benefit payments from plan assets
Transfer in/ transfer out

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets

Fair value of Plan Assets as at Year End
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(h)

1)

(k)
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee Retirement Benefits:

Net Defined Benefit Asset/(Liability):

Fig. in NPR

44. Employee Retirement Benefits (Contin ..... )

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars - -

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Defined Benefit Obligation 22,689,111 17,657,495 - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets - - - -
Liability/ (Asset) Recognised in Statement of Financial Position 22,689,111 17,657,495 - -

Expected Company Contributions for the Next Year:

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year Previous Year

Current Year Previous Year

Expected company contributions for the next year

Reconciliation of amounts in Statement of Financial Position:

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars - -
Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year

Net defined benefit liability/(asset) at prior year end 17,657,495 13,099,700 - -
Defined benefit cost included in Statement of Profit or Loss 7,512,382 6,863,537 - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI - - - -
Acquisition/ divestment (2,480,766) (2,305,742) - -
Employer contributions - - - -
Net defined benefit liability/(asset) 22,689,111 17,657,495 - -

Reconciliation of Statement of Other Comprehensive Income:

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan
Current Year Previous Year

Any Other Funded Liability
Current Year Previous Year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss, beginning of period
Total remeasurements included in OCI

Cumulative OCI - (Income)/Loss

Current/Non - Current Liability:

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars . :

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Current Liability 1,727,366 1,346,876 - -
Non - Current Liability 20,961,745 16,310,618 - -
Total 22,689,111 17,657,494 - -

Expected Future Benefit Payments:

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Within 1 year 1,727,366 1,346,876 - -
Between 1-2 years - - - -
Between 2-5 years 8,123,223 6,263,621 - -
From 6 to 10 8,485,756 6,694,537 - -
Total 18,336,345 14,305,034 - -
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Employee Retirement Benefits:

Plan assets:

Fig. in NPR

44. Employee Retirement Benefits (Contin ..... )

Particulars

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Current Year
(% Invested)

Previous Year
(% Invested)

Current Year
(% Invested)

Previous Year
(% Invested)

Government Securities (Central and State)
Corporate Bonds (including Public Sector bonds)

Mutual Funds
Deposits

Cash and bank balances
Others (to be Specified)

Total

Sensitivity Analysis:

Employee Benefit Plan

Any Other Funded Liability

Particulars ; -

Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Discount Rate 20,658,188 16,054,301 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in Discount Rate 25,110,612 19,574,795 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Increase in Salary Escalation
Rate 25,160,677 19,614,506 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 1% Decrease in Salary Escalation
Rate 20,586,663 15,997,934 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 25% Increase in Attrition Rate 23,609,648 18,401,417 - -
Effect in Defined Benefit Obligation Due to 25% Decrease in Attrition Rate 21,583,430 16,760,604 - -

Assumptions:

Particulars BEeT:fli?lﬁzn Furﬁirg:jcitizglity
Discount Rate 8.00% 0.00%
Escalation Rate (Rate of Increase in Compensation Levels) 5.00% 0.00%
Attrition Rate (Employee Turnover) 5.00% 0.00%
Mortality Rate During Employment NAL 2009 0.00%
Mortality Rates:
Representative mortality rates taken for current actuarial valuation as per the chosen mortality table are given below:

Age Rate Age Rate

15 0.000777 30 0.001219

45 0.003365 60 0.014381

20 0.001030 35 0.001459

50 0.005724 65 0.023827

25 0.001177 40 0.002196

55 0.009447 70 0.040058
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[AlETol IS SoIANRGA bdUoil [AfACS




Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
Fig. in NPR

45 Fair Value Measurements:

(i) Financial Instruments by Category & Hierarchy:

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the Fair Values of the Financial Instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair
value and (b) measured at Amortised Cost and for which Fair Values are disclosed in the Financial Statements.

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining Fair Value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into Three Levels
prescribed as per applicable NFRS.

X Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Level -
FVTPL FVOCI | Amortised Cost | FVTPL | FVOCI Amortised Cost
Investments
i) Investment in Equity Instruments | | |
Investment in Equity (Quoted) 1 - 125,493,330 - - 38,416,494 -
Investment in Equity (Unquoted) 3 - - 33,430,000 | - - 26,945,000
ii) Investment in Mutual Funds 1 - 117,675,260 - - 24,399,796
iii) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank
and Financial Institutions - - - - - -
iv) Investment in Debentures 3 - - | 3,745,601,000 | - - 3,024,189,000
v) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/
NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government) 3 - - - - - -
vi) Fixed Deposits 3 - - 8,085,700,000 - - 5,342,700,000
vii) Others (to be specified) - - - - - -
Loans 3 - - 634,571,621 - - 390,512,770
Other Financial Assets 3 - - 217,741,263 | - - 135,869,148
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 - - 464,897,050 - - 302,169,675
Total Financial Assets - | 243,168,590 | 13,181,940,934 - 62,816,290 | 9,222,385,593
Borrowings - - - - - -
Other Financial Liabilities 3 - - 249,813,558 - - 266,913,683
Total Financial Liabilities - - 249,813,558 - - 266,913,683

Level 1: Level 1 Hierarchy includes Financial Instruments measured using Quoted Prices.

Level 2: Fair Value of Financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximises the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to determine Fair Value of an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.

There is no transfer of Financial Instruments between different levels as mentioned above during the year.

(ii) Valuation Technique Used to Determine Fair Value:

a) Use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
b) Fair Value of remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis

(iii) Valuation Process:

The finance and accounts department of the Company performs the valuation of financial assets and liabilities required for financial reporting purposes.
Discussion on valuation processes and results are held at least once in a year.

The main level 3 inputs are derived and evaluated as follows:

a) Discount rate is arrived at considering the internal and external factors.

b) Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is material
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

(iv) Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Amortised Cost:

45. 'Fair Value Measurements (Continue .......... )

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Carrying Amount

Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

Investments
i) Investment in Preference Shares of Bank and Financial Institutions
ii) Investment in Debentures
iii) Investment in Bonds (Nepal Government/ NRB/ Guaranteed by Nepal Government)

3,745,601,000

3,745,601,000

3,024,189,000 |

5,342,700,000 |

3,024,189,000

iv) Fixed Deposit 8,085,700,000 8,085,700,000 5,342,700,000

v) Others (to be Specified) - - - -
Loans - -

i) Loan to Associates - - - -

ii) Loan to Employees 39,046,324 39,046,324 38,674,673 | 38,674,673

iii) Loan to Agent 27,336,191 27,336,191 30,001,444 | 30,001,444

iv) Loan to Policyholders 568,189,106 568,189,106 321,836,653 | 321,836,653

v) Others (to be Specified) - | -
Other Financial Assets 217,741,263 217,741,263 135,869,148 | 135,869,148
Total Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 12,683,613,884  12,683,613,884  8,893,270,918  8,893,270,918
Borrowings

i) Bonds - - - -

i) Debentures - - - -

iii) Term Loans - Bank and Financial Institution - - - -

iv) Bank Overdrafts - - - -

v) Others (to be Specified) - - - | -
Other Financial Liabilities 249,813,558 249,813,558 266,913,683 | 266,913,683
Total Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 249,813,558 249,813,558 266,913,683 266,913,683

The fair values of the above financial instruments measured at amortised cost are calculated based on cash flows discounted using current discount rate.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their short-term nature.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fig. in NPR
52. Operating Segment (Cont ..........)
Reconciliation of Segmental Profit with Statement of Profit or Loss:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segmental Profit 827,825,708 948,700,387
Less: Employee Benefits expenses (267,699,619) (235,702,812)
Less: Depreciation and Amortization (54,430,347) (20,025,595)
Less: Other operating expenses (380,497,838) (1,311,027)
Less: Impairment losses (499,449) 4,140,404
Less: Finance Cost (9,706,429) (34,140)
Add: Unallocable Other Income - (547,886,812)
Profit Before Tax 114,992,026 147,880,405

Reconciliation of Assets:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Assets 93,107 2,525,353
Goodwill & Intangible Assets 2,505,085 2,283,070
Property and Equipment 235,740,566 78,182,436
Investment Properties - -
Deferred Tax Assets 635,650,542 651,932,183
Investment in Subsidiaries - -
Investment in Associates - -
Investments 12,127,149,590 8,456,650,290
Loans 634,571,621 390,512,770
Current Tax Assets 327,511,843 243,253,224
Insurance Receivables 46,676,376 -
Other Assets 35,686,102 20,151,352
Other Financial Assets 217,741,263 135,869,148
Cash and Cash Equivalents 464,897,050 302,169,675
Total Assets 14,728,223,146 10,283,529,501

Reconciliation of Liabilities:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Segment Liabilities 10,204,161,327 6,764,570,980
Provisions 22,689,111 17,657,495
Deferred Tax Liabilities - -
Current Tax Liabilities - -
Insurance Payables 9,198,540 96,079,623
Other Financial Liabilities 249,813,558 266,913,683
Other Liabilities 230,356,119 120,701,979
Total Liabilities 10,716,218,654 7,265,923,759
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

53 Related Party Disclosure

(a)

Identify Related Parties:

Holding Company:

There are no holding company for this fiscal year.
Subsidiaries:

There are no subsidiary company for this fiscal year.
Associates:

There are no associate company for this fiscal year.

Fellow Subsidiaries:

There are no fellow subsidiaries company for this fiscal year.
Key Management Personnel:

The company has identified its Board Of Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Marketing

Officer as the key management personnel.

(b) Key Management Personnel Compensation:

(c

~

Fig. in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Short-term employee benefits 26,638,658 26,286,770
Post-employment benefits 2,210,976 2,102,397
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Total 28,849,634 28,389,167

Payment to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Annual salary and allowances 8,267,783 8,218,650
Performance based allowances - -
i) Employee Bonus 1,253,573 779,218
i) Benefits as per prevailing provisions - -
iii) Incentives 2,145,000 3,709,000
Insurance related benefits - -
i) Life Insurance - -
i) Accident Insurance 25,391 6,204
iii) Health Insurance (including family members) 6,750 7,350
Total 11,698,497 12,720,422
Related Party Transactions:
Particulars Holding Subsidiaries | Associates Fe_ll(_)w‘ Key Managerial Total
Company Subsidiaries Personnel

Premium Earned

Current Year -

Previous Year -

Commission Income

Current Year -

Previous Year -

Rental Income

Current Year -

Previous Year -

Interest Income

Current Year -

Previous Year -
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

53 Related Party Disclosure

(c) Related Party Transactions: Continue......

Holding Subsidiaries | Associates Fellow Key Managerial

Company Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Particulars

Sale of Property & Equipment
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - - -

Purchase of Property & Equipment
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - - -

Premium Paid | | |
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - - -

Commission Expenses | | I
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year = - - - | -

Dividend | | |
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - | - - - - | -

Meeting Fees | | |
Current Year - - - - 2,750,000 2,750,000
Previous Year - | - - - | 1,143,500 | 1,143,500

Allowances to Directors | | |
Current Year - - - - 46,482 46,482
Previous Year - - - - 80,811 | 80,811

Others (to be specified) | | I
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - - -

(d) Related Party Balances:

Holding Subsidiaries | Associates Fellow Key Managerial

Company Subsidiaries Personnel Total

Particulars

Receivables including Reinsurance
Receivables

Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - | - - - | - | -

Other Receivables (to be Specified) | | |
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - i -

Payables including Reinsurance Payables | | |
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - - -

Other Payables (to be Specified) | | |
Current Year - - - - - -
Previous Year - - - - - -
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Major Financial Indicators

Fig. in NPR
S. No. Particular Indicators Fiscal Year
2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76
Equity:
1 Net worth NPR 4,012,004,492 | 3,017,605,741 2,659,010,664 | 2,355,007,156 2,090,045,201
2 Number of Shares No. 26,250,000 17,500,000 17,500,000 17,500,000 17,500,000
3 |Book value per shares NPR 152.84 172.43 151.94 134.57 119.43
4 |Net Profit NPR 102,596,173 376,071,909 300,506,291 269,044,499 | 228,148,431
5 | Earning per Shares (EPS) NPR 4.33 21.49 17.17 15.37 13.04
6  Dividend per Shares (DPS) NPR - - - - -
7  Market Price per Shares (MPPS) NPR - - - - -
8 Price Earning Ratio (PE Ratio) Ratio - - - - -
9 Change in Equity % 32.95 13.49 12.91 12.68 12.51
10 | Return on Equity % 2.92 13.25 11.99 12.11 11.56
11 | Capital to Total Net Assets Ratio % 74.68 61.66 69.80 78.74 88.66
12 | Capital to Technical Reserve Ratio % 0.26 0.26 0.43 0.85 1.96
13 |Affiliate Ratio % - - - - -
Business:
14  First Year Premium Growth Rate %
a | Endowment % (33.67) 90.11 113.10 65.23 135.44
b | Anticipated Endowment % (80.03) (57.54) 60.62 143.34 732.41
¢ | Endowment Cum Whole Life % (36.16) 30.79 (13.91) (42.36) 473.00
d Whole Life % - - - - -
e Foreign Employment Term % - - - - -
f Micro Term % 0.19 168.56 348.61 866.67 100.00
g Special Term % - - - - -
h Othes( to be Specified) % - - - - -
15 | Renewal Premium Growth Rate % - - - - -
a | Endowment % 103.09 95.16 128.50 302.79 100.00
b | Anticipated Endowment % 27.03 124.42 353.25 721.26 100.00
c Endowment Cum Whole Life % 31.02 7.75 68.56 1,145.75 100.00
d Whole Life % - - - - -
e Foreign Employment Term % - - - - -
f Micro Term % 25.93 (7.74) 144.80 100.00 -
g Special Term % - - - - -
h Othes( to be Specified) % - - - - -
16 Single Premium Growth Rate % - - - - -
a | Endowment % (27.89) 16.54 37.99 196.67 1,441.95
b | Anticipated Endowment % - - - - -
¢ | Endowment Cum Whole Life % (82.29) (48.13) (56.85) (10.31) 789.08
d Whole Life % - - - - -
e | Foreign Employment Term % 18.00 240.90 (61.51) (36.81) (8.13)
f Micro Term % - - - - -
g | Special Term % - - - - -
h Othes( to be Specified) % - - - - -
17 Total Direct Premium Growth Rate % 10.88 50.68 79.92 68.28 189.76
18 |Net Insurance Premium/ Gross Insurance Premium % 93.02 94.34 96.88 9417 96.61
19 | Reinsurance Ratio % 6.98 5.66 3.96 0.60 3.39
Reinsurance Commission Income/ Gross Reinsurance
20 | Premium % 0.00 0.00 13.92 13.83 7.13
21 | Gross Premium Revenue/ Equity % 167.67 187.25 140.70 88.21 59.02
22 | Net Premium Revenue/ Equity % 155.97 176.66 136.30 83.07 51.60
23 | Gross Insurance Premium/Total Assets % 47.12 61.12 59.52 49.62 43.19
24 |Return on Revenue % 2.06 7.53 8.84 14.68 22.70
25 |Net Profit/ Gross Insurance Premium % 1.74 7.08 8.52 13.72 19.58
26 | Return on Investments and Loan % 10.35 10.17 11.02 10.32 16.90
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited

Major Financial Indicators

Fig. in NPR
S. No. | Particular Indicators Fiscal Year
2079/80 2078/79 2077/78 2076/77 2075/76
Expenses:

27 |Management expenses/ Direct Insurance Premium % 11.61 14.52 18.39 25.23 29.70
28 |Agent Related Expenses/ Total Management expenses % 35.70 51.60 53.24 42.38 34.05
29 |Employee expenses/ Management expenses % 39.12 30.55 29.98 36.31 36.98
30 |Agent Related Expenses/ Direct Insurance Premium % 4.15 7.49 9.79 10.69 10.11
31 |Employee expenses/ Number of Employees Amt. 739,502 695,289 744,966 774127 669,800
32 | Expense Ratio % 11.61 14.52 18.39 25.23 29.70
33 |Commission Ratio % 12.20 15.56 17.83 18.62 17.20
34 | Direct Business Acquisition Ratio % 12.56 14.55 16.76 15.51 11.01
35 |Operating Expense Ratio % 12.48 15.39 18.98 26.79 30.74

Assets:

36 |Incrementin Investment held % 43.40 60.39 40.58 41.84 8.01
37 |Return on Assets % 0.82 4.32 5.07 6.81 8.46
38 |Long term Investments/Total Investments % 91.81 90.95 78.76 90.44 80.39
39 |Short term Investments/Total Investments % 8.19 9.05 21.24 9.56 19.61

Total Investment & Loan/Gross Insurance Contract
40 | Liabilities % 125.06 | 130.79 137.92 189.24 301.46
Investment in Unlisted Shares and Debtors/ Total Net
41 | Assets % 1.02 1.03 0.94 0.50 0.37
42 |Investment in Shares/ Total Net Assets % 4.52 2.30 3.72 5.65 3.03
43 |Agent loan / Number of Agents Per agent 219,566 150,566 238,908 200,654 136,076
44 |Liquidity Ratio % 2.98 2.21 4.48 2.25 4.29
Liabilities:
45 |Solvency Margin % 1.82 3.49 3.00 212 212
46 |Increment in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities % 0.51 0.67 0.97 1.30 2.31
Net Technical Reserve/ Average Net Premium of
47 |previous 3 Years % - - - - -

a Endowment % 791 10.25 13.57 | - -

b Anticipated Endowment % 9.04 | 9.54 14.29 | - -

c Endowment Cum Whole Life % 15.13 | 11.76 10.97 | - -
d Whole Life % - - - | - -
e Foreign Employment Term % 79.48 | 47.87 26.58 | - -

f Micro Term % 50.06 | 152.43 470.66 - -
g Special Term % - - - - -

h Othes( to be Specified) % | - - - | - -
48 |Actuarial Provision Amt. | 10,204,161,327 | 6,764,570,980 | 4,045,297,829 2,057,460,965 893,023,628
49 | Technical Provisions/ Total Equity % 290.32 | 238.33 161.36 | 92.57 45.24
50 |Insurance Debt/ Total Equity % - - - - -
51 |Outstanding Claim/ Claim Paid % 8.91 | 16.65 22.85 | 13.50 1.39
52 |No. of Outstanding Claim/ No. of Intimated Claims % 0.05 | 3.48 10.36 | 26.21 -
53 | Total Number of Inforce Policies No.s 178,319 | 115,826 124,767 | 118,808 99,267
54 |Lapse Ratio % 7.80 | 7.37 8.91 19.36 19.52

Number of Renewed Policy/ Last Year's Total Number
55 |of In Force Policies % 92.20 92.63 91.01 80.64 80.48
Number of Intimated Claim/ Total Number of In Force
56 |Policy % | 329 | 2.29 0.57 | 0.11 0.06
57 |Declared Bonus Rate Per'000 | 25-77 25-75 25-73 25-73 25-73
58 |Interim Bonus Rate Per'000 | 25-77 25-75 25-73 25-73 25-73
Others: | |
59 |Number of Offices No.s 141 141 126 114 85
60 |Number of Agents No.s 22,258 | 17,493 14,124 | 10,005 6,839
61 |Number of Employees No.s 362 339 261 232 191
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Citizen Life Insurance Company Limited
Board of Director’s Report

A. Information related to the company:

4.

5.

Date of Establishment: Ashad 12, 2064 (June 26, 2007)
Insurer License Date: Bhadra 07, 2074 (August 23, 2017)

Insurance Business Type, Nature: Endowment, Money Back, Endowment Cum Whole Life,
Foreign Employment Term & Micro Term products of Life Insurance Business.

Date of Commencement of Business: Kartik 02, 2074 (October 19, 2017)

Other matters which Insurer wish to include: None

B. Other disclosures as approved by the Board of Directors:

1.

Jral affes Ufdidcel 20TO

Tax, Service Charges, Fine and Penalties to be paid under Laws & Regulation have been
paid.

The Shareholding Pattern is available in Schedule 17(a) of Financial Statement.

The actual Solvency Margin is 1.82 which is above 1.5 as required by Nepal Insurance
Authority.

a. The financial amounts contained in SOFP are not overstated than its fair value.

b. Measurement basis of the Assets: Historical Cost, Amortized Cost and Fair Value
wherever applicable.

All investments made are in line with Investment Directives issued by Nepal Insurance
Authority.

Number of Claims settled within the year and outstanding Claim Number and time frame to
settle the Outstanding Claim: The Company has settled 6,814 Claims and 39 Claims are
outstanding as of the financial year ending Ashad 31, 2080 (July 16, 2023). The outstanding
claims will be settled in the following financial year after receipt of complete documents.

The applicable provisions of the Insurance Act 2079, Insurance Regulation 2049, Company
Act 2063, NFRSs and other prevailing Laws and Regulation have been duly complied with.

The Financial Statement of the Company has been prepared in accordance with the
applicable Accounting Standards, Principles, and Policies. Further, the Accounting Policies
have been applied consistently and judgements and estimates have been made wherever
necessary.

The Financial Statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading and they present a true and fair view of
the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable
laws and regulations.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Adequate Policies and Procedures have been formulated by the Board of Directors to
safeguard the assets and for identification and mitigation against losses due to fraud,
embezzlement, and irregularities.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a Going Concern Basis.

The management has ensured that the internal control system is commensurate with the size,
nature & volume of the insurer's business.

The Company has not conducted any transactions contrary to the Insurance Act, 2079,
Company Act, 2063, and other related Regulations and Directions.

Nepal Insurance Authority has levied fine of NPR 200,000 as per section 138 (4) (Ka) of
Insurance Act, 2079 during the Financial Year 2079/080 (2022/023).

Other disclosure which is deemed appropriate by Board of Directors/Management: None.

Pradeep Jung Pandey Sumit Kumar Agrawal Manoj Karki
Chairman Director Director

Mahesh Swar Dawa Futi Sherpa Abhinav JB Rana Shreeman Karki
Director Director Director Independent Director

_QOQ_

Date: Poush 16, 2080 (January 01, 2024)
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Citizen Child Future Life Insurance Plan

Sfidat o AN3Teln

Citizen Regular Pay Money Back Insurance Plan




GALLERY

6™ AGM 6™ ANNIVERSARY OF CITIZEN LIFE INSURANCE




GALLERY

CITIZEN HEROES CONCLAVE
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FREE HEALTH CHECKUP PROVIDED TO THE PEOPLE OF REMOTE AREA OF MYAGDI
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